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CHAIREMAN EARLL: Good morning. I would like to call
this joint hearing to order and welcome everyone and offer my
thanks to everyone who isg making themselves available to
testify this morning. I recognize that it was on relatively
short notice, and I do appreciate everyone's ccoperation.

As you know, this is a joint hearing of the House
Gaming Oversight Committee along with the Senate Committee on
Community, Economic and Recreational Development, and the
purpose of the hearing is actually guite concise. We are going
to revisit the Lobbying Disclosure Law, the Pennsylvania
Lobbying Disclosure Law, and reorient ourselves, and probably
reeducate ourselves, as to the provigions of that law. And we
will be hearing from three people who I will intrcduce in a
moment .

Secondly, we are going to then take testimeony from
the Pennsylvania Casinc Association and its members in order to
determine or toc learn exactly what the makeup of that
association is, what their mission is, and what the activities
are that they've engaged in over the past couple years. So I
would like to encourage the Members of the joint hearing panel
to kind of conform cur questioning to guestions that are
probative of thoge two issues.

A couple housekeesping matters. Since this ig a jeint
hearing, we're going tc kind of alternate back and forth

between Senate Members asking questions and House Members
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asking questions. I would ask the Members to be mindful that,
you know, we do have scme time constraints. We're not going to
be here all day, sc to please keep vour questioning concise,
and I would ask that of the testifiers as well, to please make
sure that your answers are responsive to the question, and
we're all going to try to keep this moving.

So with that, I would welcome again our House
colleagues and ask my co-chair, Representative Santoni, if he
has any remarks for us.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Good morning, everyone. I just want to thank vou and commend
you and your staff for helping te put this together. We worked
very closely on this issue, and I hope that today can provide
us with some answers to some of the gquestions that have been
posed.

Just as a -- very guickly, just as some history, back
in November of 2009, in the midst of negotiations on best of
how to shape Act 1, it came to my attention that the
Pennsylvania Casino Aggoclation, an organization that had not
registered as a lobbying interest, had made public statements,
communicated with Members of the General Assembly, and invested
money in an advertising campaign that appeared to be intended
to influence the outcome and the final provisions of what would
become Act 1. I set out my concerns in a letter to the

chalrman of the PCA that month. I appreciate the responses I

Senate of Pennsylvania




i0
11
12
137
14
15
16
17
18
18
20
21
22
23
24

25

received. I was -- 1 did receive z response from every
organization that I sent to, including one thisg morning from
Mt. Alry. I do appreciate those responses, but I do share
Chairman Earll's point of view that further quegstions must be
asked and answered.

In the process cof today's hearing, I hope to learn
more about PCA, what its purpose is and was, and precisely what
activities it engaged in. I also look forward to hearing
testimony from those who are experts in Pennsylvania's leobbying
disclosure laws. 'These issues are complex, and we want to
eliminate as many gray areas as possible. It is absolutely
vital that we come out of this hearing with a clear
understanding of the law and the Casino Asscociation's adherence
to or exemption from it.

I understand that this discussion will be
far-reaching and will touch on many issuesg that are tangential
to the central purpose of the hearing. T asgk that all
Members--I agree with the Chairman--please refrain from keeping
this -- pontificating, and keeping it to the point, but I also
ask Members to please refrain from turning this responsibility
intc an opportunity to make personal observations about the
gaming industry or to give into the temptation to score points
by attacking testifiers or cther figures in the industry.

Cur singular goal tcday must be to get answerszs and

find solutions. I bhelieve we are all in agreement that the
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Penngylvania gaming industry must be above reprcach. I am
confident that today's hearing will give us the answers we need
to either confirm that no wrongdoing has occurred, or to begin
taking corrective measures to guarantee that our lobbying
procedures are transparent and that those who violate the law
are held accountable.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHATRMAN EARLL: You're welcome.

And ncw I would invite the Minority Chair of the
House Gaming Overgight Committee, Representative Schroder, if
yvou have any remarks.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Thank you, Chairman Earll.

Good morning. First of all, I would just like to
gay, 1 appreciate the efforts of Chairman Earll and Chairman
Santoni to convene this joint hearing this morning on the issue
of lobbyist disclogure and the adherence of the PCA to the
lokbbyist digsclosure statute. As someone who sat on the
drafting committee of the regqulations for the Lekbyist
Disclosure Act, it is a very involved act, and those of us who
drafted the regulations tock our call very seriously and tried
to draft the best regulaticns that we could in order to fulfill
the intent of the General Assembly and make sure that the
correct interpretaticons, you know, were offered in the
regulation.

So I look forward to hearing responses today,

Senate of Pennsyliwvania
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particularly toc -- involving the letter that was sent by
Attorney Sprague to Chairman Santoni. I think the explanations
do raige gome guestions regarding adherence to the lobbyist
disclogure law, and I lock forward t£c drilling down into that
and hopefully getting those answers and getting issues cleared
up here today.

Before we move on, I just had two brief questions,
Madam Chair. 1Is there a stenographer with us today?

CHAIREMAN EARLL: Yes, there isg, and thank you for
reminding me. I would appreciate if, since we do have a
stenographer here, if when, before you begin your guestioning,
if the Members would intreoduce yoursgelf, sgtate your name for
the record to make sure that we get that on the record.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Point well-takemn. Thank
vou. And will the witnessges and those testifying be sworn
today at the hearing?

CHATRMAN EARLI: Yes. Not these first witnesses, but
the second get of witnesses will be sworn.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: You're welcome.

With that, any other opening remarks by any Members?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Ckay, now I would introduce our
first panel of testifierg. We have Mr. Chet Harhut, who ig a

Commlssionsr of the Bureau <¢f Commiggions, Electicns and
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Legislation, which is a division of the Campaign Finance and
Lobbying Disclosure Bureau within the Department of State.

With him is Barry Kauffman, who is the Executive
Director of Pennsylvania Common Cause.

And also on the panel is Petex Calcara, who is with
the Pennsylwvania Aggociation for Government Relations.

We have invited all three of these groups to testify.
And gentlemen, I appreciate your -- the time and effort that
you've put into your testimony. But we've invited these three
groups because they cbviously were stakeholders when the
original law was enacted and probably have more insights inte
varicus provisicns of that law. So again, I do appreciate your
testimony, and we're ready whenever you are.

MR . HARHOT: I'll start, then.

CHAIRMAN EARLIL: And I would point cut feor the
Membersg, I do think that all three panelists have provided
written statements that you should have copies of, so.

MR. HARHUT: I'll go through that.

Chairwoman Earll, Chairmen Santoni and Schroder, and
distinguished Members of the House Gaming Oversight, Senate
Community, Economic and Recreational Development Committees,
good morning. Thank you for the invitation to appear here
vefore vou to digcuss 1obbyiﬁg discleosure. For the record, my
name is Chet Harhut, and I am the Commissioner of the

Department of State’'s Buresau of Commissions, Elections and
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Legislation. In this capacity, I am responsible for the
supervision of the bureau which oversees lokbying disclosure;
notaries public; commissions; legislation; Commonwealth's
electoral process, which includes the Statewide Uniform
Registry of Electorg; voter registration; and campaign finance.

The Lobbying Disclosure Act was passed unanimously by
the General Aggembly and was signed by Governor Rendell on
November 1, 2006. It is very important to explain that the
Lobbying Disclosure Act assigns the responsibilities for
administraticn and enforcement of the act to three State
agencieg and the Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court of
Penngylvania.

The Department of State is solely responsible for the
administration of the act. We oversee registration, the filing
of guarterly expense reports, and conduct independent audits in
accordance with the act. The department is alsc required to
make all filed registrations and guarterly expense reports
available to the public. The act does not, however, provides
the department with any enforcement powers. The legiglature
designated the enforcement responsibilities to the State Ethics
Commission, the Attorney General, and the Disciplinary Board of
the Supreme Court cf Pennsylvania.

Under the act, the State Ethics Commission's
responsibilities include both enforcement and issuing advisory

opinions. The Commission is the only agency given the
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authority to issue an opinion regarding compliance with the
act. An opinion may be issued upon written request by a
lobbyist, lobbying firm, principal, the Department of State,
the Disciplinary Board, or a State official or emplcyee. These
opinicns can be very helpful in that they can answer questions
as to whether or not certain specific factual activity
consgtitutes lokbying under the act.

Criminal enforcement of the act is designated to the
Attorney General. The Disciplinary Board of the Pennsylvania
Supreme Court is responsible for enforcement of the act ag it
pertains to lobbyists and principals who are alzo attorneys.

The Rendell administration believes in making the
lobbying process transparent, and registering lobbyists is a
key step towards open disclosure. As of January 1, 2007, all
lobbyists, lobbying firms, and principals have been required to
register biennially with the Department of State within 10 days
of acting in any capacity as a lobbyist, lobbying firm, or
principal, unless exempted under the act. A person may be
exempt from registration and reporting if, for example, the
person does not receive economic consideration for lobbying, or
a person limits their lobbying to testifying before a committee
or agency. A list of all the exemptions can be found in
gsection 13A(0)s of the act.

To register, each individual lobbyist must submit a

registration statement, recent photograph, and a $100 biennial

Senate of Pennsylwvania
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registration fee. Lobbying firms and principals must submit a
registration statement and a $100 biennial registration fee.

The act defineg lobbyving as an "individual,
asscciation, corporation, partnership, business trust or cther
entity that engages in lobbying on behalf of a principal for
economic consideration."™ The definition "includes an attorney
at law while engagling] in lobbying." A lobbying firm is
defined as "an entity that engages in lobbying for economic
consideration on behalf of a principal other than the entity
itself." A principal ig defined ag "an individusal,
association, cerporation, partnership, business trust or other
entity (1) on whose behalf a lobbying firm or lobbyilst engages
in lobbying; or (2) that engages in lobbying on the principal's
own behalf. "

Registered principals are also required to file
quarterly expense reportg with the Department of State, which
must include the total costs of all lobbying for the reporting
period. Lobbying costs include office expenses, personnel
expenses, expenditures related to gifts, hospitality,
transportation, and lodging of State officials or employees.
Additiconally, a lobbying firm or lobbyist not associated with a
lobbying firm must submit a repoert if, during the reporting
period, the lobbying firm or lobbyist engaged in lobbying which
was not ccntained in the expense report filed by a principal or

principals represented.
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Guidance for how to comply with the act can be found
in the lobbying disclosure regulaticns that became effective on
April 11, 2009. These regulations were drafted by the Lobbying
Disclosure Regulations Committees, of which I am a member, as a
designee of Secretary Pedro A. Cortes. Additicnally, the
committee published a manual in the Pennsylvania Bulletin on
January %, 2010, to give further guidance on accounting and
reporting reguirements of the act.

Thank you for the cpportunity to present this
testimony to you. I cculd take questions now or wait until the
other panel members are done, and we can -- 1it's up to you.

CHAIRMAN EARLIL: Thank you. We're going to wait
until all of the panelistg have offered their remarks and then
cpen it up for guestions.

Mr. Kauffman.

MR. KAUFFMAN: Good morning, Chairlady Earll and
Chairman Santoni. I am Barry Kauffman, Executive Director of
Commen Cause Pennsylvania. Common Cause is a citizen's
government integrity advocacy organization with over 5,000
members and affiliates throughout Pennsylvania. We have over
35 years' experience in working for more open, accountable, and
respocnsive government.

I was invited here today to comment on what Common
Cause believes Act 134 of 2006 requires with regard to the

regigtration and financial disclogsure of lobbyists and those
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who hire or contract lobbyists. As vou prcbably know, Common
Cause Pennsylvania worked for over 30 years to achieve the
gassage of this law and was invelved in nearly every phase of
its develcopment. It is our belief that the Lobbyist Disclosure
Law must mean what it c¢learly states and that it must be
interpreted and enforced in that manner.

Therefore, in our view, the law concerning
regigtration containsg three specific triggers, all three of
which must be accomplished to require registration and
disclosure. First, the person, organization, or company must
be engaged in an activity that is intended to have an impact on
the creation, modification, or preservation of a State law or
regulation or cfficial policy, the promotion or hindrance of
the appointment of a person to public coffice, or the securing
of a contract from a legislative or executive branch agency of
State govarnment.

And, seccond, the person, organization, or company
engaged in the activity in number one, which I just described,
must be compensated to engage in this activity or spend money
on the above activities, and/or provide gifts, meals,
entertainment, travel, and other hospitality to engender the
good will of or achieve access to public officials.

And the third trigger is the person, organization, or
company must expend funds, utilize resources, oOr receive

compensation for activities which I just mentioned in an
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aggregate amount of more than $2,500 in a calendar gquarter.
This includes salaries, benefits, expenses, support staff,
offices, consultants, eguipment, supplies, telephone and
communication services, and other support services in that
£2,50G.

If all three of the conditions I just mentionsd are
met, then the person, organization, or company expending those
rescurces, as well as the person being compensated to obtain
the benefit of the affected public policy or contract, must
register and begin to file quarterly disclosure reports for the
remainder of that legislative Session.

These are the general rules. And there are a variety
of exceptions that could excuse a person or organization from
filing or reporting. When I am asked for advice from lobbyists
and organizations with regard to how to comply with
registration reporting, we have always urged people to err on
the side of disclosure. We believe it ig much better to
protect one's reputation and ability to continue lobbying than
to discredit or diminish one's integrity and ability to lobky
by failing teo register and report. We have encouraged people
to register and report at the point at which they realize they
are iikely to hit the threshold triggers for the guarter, even
if they have not vet formally reached that threshold.

We believe the General Assembly and the specizl

committee assigned to draft lobbying-related regulations have
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done a pretty good job of establishing the registration
reporting requirements in a clear, understandable, and
enforceable language, although we do contend certain standards
should be more comprehensive and rigorous, although I've been
agked not tco comment on those at this particular session.

In the event that there isg ambiguity or lack of
clarity, a registrant or potential registrant has the ability
to receive advice and guidance from the State Ethics
Commission.

This concludes my formal comments, and I would be
happy to respond to any of your questicons, 1if I can, at the
appropriate time. Thank you.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Thank you, Mr. Kauffman.

And next, we will hear from the Pennsylvania
Association for Government Relationg. Mr. Calcara.

MR. CALCARA: Senator Earll, Representative Santoni,
Memhers of the committee, Senators, Representatives, good
morning. My name i1g Peter Calcara. I'm Pregident of the
Pennsylvania Agsocilaticon for Government Relations, otherwige
known as PAGR. PAGR's mission is to promote the purpose and
effectiveness of the lobbying profession congistent with the
public interest. Although we encourage our members to follow
the law and regulations, it's not part of PAGR's mission to
determine whether our members should register under the

Lobbying Disclosure Act.
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Our association and its members sncourage high
gtandards of personal and professicnal conduct among all
lobbyists. Currentily, there are approximately 200 membars of
PAGR, while the number of registered lobbyists in the
Commonwealth is slightly over 1,000, I think exactiy 1,174.
PAGR's membership is vast and diverse. We have members who are
agssociation lobbyists like myself, corporate lobbyists,
independent lcbbyists, lawyer lobbyists, associate members, and
legislative liaisons.

In order to make its members more effective
lobbyists, PAGR has undertaken the initiative to educate its
mempbers about issues affecting the lobbying profession. aAnd
this includes the newly enacted Lobbying Disclosure Law and its
accompanying regulations and manuzl. Every year, PAGE holds a
one-day conference entitled Lobbypalcoza, where issues and
topics important fo PAGR's membership are discussed and
debated. Just this past October, cone of the topics discussed
dealt with the Lobbying Disclosure Act's final regulationsg,
which were promulgated in April of 20089.

PAGR's bimonthly membership wmeetings and newsletters
also serve as a great resource for the membership by providing
members with both an oral and written forum to discuss issues
related to the lobbying profegsion.

When digcussing the Lobbying Disclesure Act, we

typically invite Members and staff of the legislature, as well
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as individuals from the Department of State and the Ethics
Commission, to address our membership. They provide guidance
to cur membership regarding both the act and the regulations.
Please be assured that PAGR will continue to educate itg
members about the Lobbying Disclosure Act and its accompanying
regulations and manual.

It's my understanding that one of the purposes of
today's meeting is to explore and clarify relevant provigions
of the Lobbying Disclosure Act. Please know that I am not an
atteocrney, and so I am not in a position to offer guidance to
this committee on what certain words mean baged on case law or
statutory interpretation. My fellow panelists, however, may be
in a more suitable position to offer this kind of advice and
guidance tc the committee. We believe, however, that the
Lobbying Disclosure Act, its regulations, and manual speak for
themselves.

Again, thank you for this opportunity, and I would be
happy to try and answer any gquestions that you wmay have.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Thank vyou, gentlemen, for
your testimeny. We'll start with guestions, and we'll start
with Chairman Schroder.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Thank vyou.  This question
will be directed to Mr. Calcara of PAGR. Pete, if vyvou know, is
the PCA a member of PAGR?

MR. CALCARA: To my knowledge, they are not a memher
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of PAGR. We are in the process of renewing our membersghip now.
They were not a member in 2008. They may have, in the last day
or week or so, renewed, but to my knowledge, they are not
members.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCDER: Are any of the individuals
involved with PAGR, as principalg, members of the PCA, to your
knowledge?

MR. CALCARA: Not to my knowledge.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Ckay. Are all lobbyists in
Pennsylvania members of PAGR?

MR. CALCARA: No. As I indicated, there are over
1,100 registered lobbyists, and there are only approximately
200 members of PAGR.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: 8o the vast majority, then,
are not members of PAGR.

MR. CALCARA: Correct. Correct.

REPRESENTATIVE SCERODER: Ckay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Senator Orie.

SENATCR CRIE: I just have a few questions for Peter
Calcara in regards to the Pennsylvania Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which you operate. How would 2 CPA firm or
an individual join that assgociation?

MR. CALCARA: Through a regular application process.
There's & membership fee. We're a -- PICPA, the Pennsylvania

Institute of CPAs, is an individual-based memberghip
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organization as well.

SENATOR ORIE: So would there be an agreement
outlining dues and services, et cetera, that they provide?

MR. CALCARA: Yes.

SENATCR ORIE: And do members pay different amounts
in regards to these dues?

MR. CRALCARA: It varieg. There is a tiered gtructure
for PICPA. If you're a practicing CPA with over 5 yearsg!'
experience, there's cne dues level--I think it's $260--and then
if you have legs experience, it's a lower fee, and if you're a
student, there's a fee below that as well.

SENATOR ORIE: The information you just provided us
in regards to the Pennsylvania Institute of Certified Public
Accountants -- is that the norm for how most associationsg
function®?

MR. CALCARA: I can't really say. I think it
probably is. I know for PAGR, however, we just have one fee
structure, and it'g alsgsoe a membership. It's on an individual
basis. But I don't know if I -- as far as other crganizations,
I'm not sure. T think we're probably very similar. But I
don't know if Barry has anvything to add.

MR. KAUFFMAN: Common Cause is a gsimilar tiered
structure for family members, individual members, and studentsg,
and it does appear fairly common among various organizations.

SENATOR ORIE: And Commissioner Harhut -- i1s that the

Senate of Pennsylvania
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right pronunciation?

MR. HARHUT: (Indicating in the affirmative.)

SENATOR ORIE: I just have one question. You said
that by a written reguest, the Department ¢f State can file
something with a written reqguest to the Ethics Commission. Has
anything been filed, to date, on the Pennsylvania Casino
Association by your department?

MR. HARHUT: No, we have not.

SENATOR CORIE: Thank vyou.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONT: I just have some brief
questions, and you might have answered the one. But I know in
my opening remarks, I indicated we try to get rid of all the
gray areas, but inevitably there are when we pass legislation.
So if I'm looking to start a lobbying firm or I want to come to
talk to Members of the legiglature, and I'm neot sure if T meet
the requirements, I can go to the State Ethics Commission and
ask them whether I'm going to do 1, 2, 3, &, B, C, and they're
going to let me know whether I need to file cor not?

MR. HARHUT: Yeah. You would file an official
advisory opinion with the Ethics Commission, and they would
advise you whether vou should or should not register as a
lobbyist.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: And Peter, do you recommend
-- i1f someone comes to you as an organization, and they want fo

be a lobbyist, and -- sames thing? Do you make recommendationsg
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to them on whether they should file or nct?

ME. CALCARA: No. PAGR will not make that kind of
recommendation. We would defer -- we would refsr the
individual or group to the State Ethics Commission.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Okay. And wy final
gquesticn, I guesgs to the Department of State -- is there an
investigator, I know the Attorney General has part, oversees
gome of it, but is there somecons cut there that's sort of -- 1
don't want tec call it lobbving police, maybe, for want of a
better term, that's ocut there locking for pecple that are not
adhering to the law? Is there someone that's -- or do you just
respond to complaints?

MR. HARHUT: We don't have any enforcement authority
with the lobbying law. It all falles on the Ethics Commission.
They do investigations. They have a complaint procedure, which
any individual can ceomplain, do a sworn complaint. Or -- I
don't want to speak for them and their methodology, but they do
investigate all aspects of the law.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTCONT : Thank vyou, Madam Chair.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Senator Wozniak.

SENATOR WOZNIAK: Just a quick guestion. Down here,
we have a plethora of professional lobbying organizations.

Doeg anything preclude the associaticn, the Casino Association,
from hiring these particular lobbyving groups to lobby for them?

And if they do, do they have to register with you, or is it
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gsomething that the lobbying firm that they hired has to
register?

MR. HARHUT: Well, in most cases, everybody then
would have to register, because they would be a principal under
that firm, if they're spending the threshcld amount, if they're
spending $2,500 per guarter,

SENATOR WOZNIAK: Thank vyou.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Representative Vereb.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREEB: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

My first guestion is to Mr. Kauffman. You indicated

in your -~ the three pieces of criteria you see ag trips for
the cobligation to report. You also suggested that people come
te you. I mean, Barry, you're no stranger to the Capitol. Has

anyene from PCA or any of their members ever come toc you and
asked vou for an opinion or advice on what to do with the
organization?

MR. KAUFFMAN: No.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREEB: Okay. My next question, for
Mr. Harhut. You said when someone violates the Lobbyist
Disclosure Act or any form of the act, it goes to your office?
No?

MR. HARHUT: No, Ethics.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: State Ethics Commission.

MR. HARHUT: Yeg. Attorney General also has ¢riminal

enforcement of the act for intentional criminal viclations, but
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the Ethics Commission investigates issues related to
registration and reporting and things of that nature.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Okay, so you brought up an
important pcoint. Criminal intent is a pretty strong term. In
vour interpretaticon of our current law, because cobviously we're
loocking to potentially make changes, you know, how yvou define
criminal intent versus misunderstanding versus ignorance to the
law? I mean, it seems to be--

MR. HARHUT: And unfortunately, since we don't
involve curselves with enforcement issues, I really don't have
an opinion on that differentiation. I mean, the Ethics
Commission would probably give vou an example of an intentional
criminal wviolation, but I can't -- I'm not in a position to do
that.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Is it your understanding that
a well-represented aggociation shcould be zble to read our act
and understand it clearly?

MR. HARHUT: (No response.)

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Senator Ferlo.

SENATOR FERLO: I'm Senator Ferlo. Good morning,
everybody. I feel like I'm at a high school dance, first of
all.

Mr. Kauffman, you represent an crganizaticn that has
a strong advocacy history of advocating for public disclosure,

and I'm reading your testimony, and I hear your words. You've

Senate of Pennsylvania




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

24

delineated three specific criteria. You suggest that all three
have to be met as the means test. 8o what's your conclusion?
Has the PA Casino organization either wviolated or not
maintained the spirit of the law? Did they engage in the
appearance of impropriety? What's vyour conclusion? I
appreciate your highly politicized, well-rounded, carefully
tactic, diplomatic commentary. What are you saying?

MR. KAUFFMAN: Well, since the legislature has not
given Common Cauge subpoena power, it's kind of difficult for
me to answer that. I have locked through the materials sent
out by Senator Earll and Representative Santoni's staff.
There's not a lot of clarity in that, but I guess I would go
back to what the language of the law 1g, and the definition of
lobbying is "an effort to influence legislative action." AaAnd
then there is a definition for legislative action, and there
was certainly legislaticon in play at the various points in time
of which the Casinc Asscciation appears to have been active.

There was apparently a radio advertisement. On its
face, the radio advertisement does not appear to crogs the line
of what was considered to be lobbying. However, I think you
alsc have to take into account the intent. You know, what was
the timing of 1t? How often did the radio ad run? Where was
it run? Was it run in districts where there were legislators
they wanted to influence?

Like I =ald, we encourage registrants and those who

Senate of Pennsylvania




i0

11

12

13

14

15

i6

17

i8

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

25

probably should be registered to fully disclose and take a
fairly broad view of what they're required to do. I probably
take the broadegst view of what is ceonsidered lokbying in my
reporting. The letter from Mr. Sprague indicates that part of
their mission is to, gquote, "create a better understanding of
the gaming industry by the general public, elected officials,”
and the "decision makers," and then goeg on to some other
categories. They do acknowledge--

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Mr. Kauffman, what letter are vyou
referencing?

MR. KAUFFMAN: I'm looking at the December 1, 20009,
letter to Representative Santoni. The first paragraph on the
second page outlines what their mission is. They do indicate
they did three mailings to the General Assembly, which took an
hour and a half of staff time on =ach mailing, at a cost of
roughly $450.

They claim they'wve never met with a Member of the
General Assembly on pending legislation as of that December 1st
letter. I have no reason to contradict that. I mean, I know I
have to meet with legislators gquite often to get my point of
view across or make telephone calls or send e-mails or have my
volunteers go and talk to people, but maybe they have some
better strategieg and tactics which I don't know about.

Sc it seems like they have certainly walked up to the

edge of the precipice. Whether they have stepped over or not,
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I am not in a posgition to make that determinatricn.

SENATOR FERLO: 2nd Mr. Calcara, President Calcara,
you suggest that the Disclosure Act, itsg regulations, and
manual clearly speak for themselves. So what does that mean in
your observation of this specific group that has, by zll
indication, basically met the means test of being lobbying and
regquired to file appropriately with the State?

MR. CALCARA: Senator, I appreciate your question,
but I don't think PAGR is in a pcsition to opine whether or not
an organization has met the requirements under the law. I
think the Ethics Commission is probably the better crganization
tc ask that question to.

SENATOR FERLO: Okay. Thank vyou.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Senator COrie.

SENATOR ORIE: Mr. Kauffman, have you had the
oppertunity to loock at the IRS statements that were filed by
PCA in 2007 and 20087

MR. KAUFFMAN: Yes. I looked at them last night.

SENATOR ORIE: And when you saw the office expenses,
for example, salaries in the amount -- in 2008 -- in the amount
of $410,000 on salaries and benefits, $46,000 on rent and
utilities, and $92,000 on telephones, would you agree that has
an impact in regards to whether or not they are engaged in
lobbying or have passed the $2,500 threshold?

MR. KAUFFMAN: You know, again, I don't have subpoena
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power. I can't call them in. I don't know what they do, per
se. In Mr. Sprague's letter, they claim the only thing they
did lobbyving-related was to send out three pieces of
correspondence by e-mail. If that is, in fact, the only thing
they did, if they did not have any travel expensss coming to
Harrisburg to talk to public officials, if they did not have
any telephone conversations, if they did not have any other
corregpondence or strategy sessions among their members to
determine legislative strategy, then perhaps they didn't.

SENATOR CRIE: When you take into account the letter
that you just referred to and the radio ads, the e-mails, and
you look at the definition of lobbying under the Lobbving
Disclosure Act, and it saye that one of the items is also
cffice expenses, when you look at this holistically, ig this
lobbying, under your expertise?

MR. KAUFFMAN: Again, 1t's difficult for me to answer
that question, because I don't know what they actually did. T
can only say for myself, when I file my lobbyist disclosure
reports, I lock at our complete time on what we did on lcbbying
and lobbying-related activities, both direct lobbying and
indirect, and then I prorate all of my expenses - my telephone
costs, my office costs, my supply costs, my egquipment costg -
and I prorate that across all my expenses to make, to determine
a calculaticn of what I have to report. Again, I don't know

exactly what PCA did or does. I can only respond to how my
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interpretation is and how I respond.

SENATOR ORIE: Thank wvou.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: I recognize the difficulty for all
cf vou to be opining or commenting on what PCA did or didn't do
and how that comports with the law, and that is part of the
purpose of what we're here for this morning is to learn
directly from PCA what they did or didn't do. But Mr.
Kauffman, I would ask you, could you give us some clarificaticn
on what is meant by "direct" versus "indirect" communication?

ME. KAUFFMAN: Well, according to the law, in the
definitiocns section, i1f you look at pages 67 and algo on page
66, in a nutshell, direct lobbying is an effort by a person or
an organization to go directly to a public official and try to
influence them in gome way to take an action which would affect
public policy. Indirect communicaticn is taking some action to
get other people to do the same thing. Either, vyou know, if a
radio ad says, please call your legislator and do this, or if
vou send cut a letter saying, here's what's happening, we need
yvour help, please call your legislator, or an e-mail, that
becomes indirect lobbying.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Does the requlation require that it
be that blatant, even if it's indirect lobbying, that you have
to specifically say, contact your legislator, or ig it indirect
lobbying if the implicaticn is there without the sgpecific

directive?
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MR. KAUFFMAN: Well, the law states, 1f I can resad
it, "an effort, whether written, oral or by any other medium,
to encourage others, including the general public, to take
action, the purpose or foreseeable effect of which is to
directly influence legiglative action or administrative
action." So, again, there is a gray area in the law as what
their intent was. That igs a gquestion of intent.

The language, "the purpocse or foreseseable effect of
which, " yvou kncw, I could locok at the radio ad in two different
ways. T could look at the radio ad ag to say, hey, vou know,
we're a bunch of nice guys; look at all the woney we bring to
the State. The other way to look at it is, you know, again,
depending on the timing and how many times it was run, when it
wag run, if it was targeted in certain legislative districts,
then maybe the purpcse or foreseeable effect was to direct
people to contact their lawmakers. But there is nct that level
of clarity in that radio ad. 8o you can interpret it either
way, I guess.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Could vou clarify for wme what the
obligations are of an association, for example, who might be
lobbying, versus the principals or members of the association,
and how do you distinguish whether one of them or all of them
should be registered?

MR. KAUFFMAN: I believe, and I'm not positive, I

balieve there is language in the statute or the regg which
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states that, you know, a member, just simply being a member of
an organization and responding to an organization's entreaty to
take zcticn does not make you a lcobbyist. I believe that
language survived in law. I can't recall for sure. But
certainly, if you are spending money, an amount which is over
$2,500 in a guarter, to influence legislative or executive
action, then you're required to register a report. And that
goes beyond organizations. If a person spent, out of his cwn
pocket, an amount over that, he could posgsibly be reguired to
register.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Thank you.

Do any of the Memberg have any other guestions for
this panel?

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Chairman Schroder.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Just cne follow-up.

Mr. Kauffman, I've read and reread and read again the
text of the radio ad in gquestion. It seems to me that it does
a couple things. No, it doeg not exactly say, contact your
legislator. It doesn't do anything like that. But wouldn't
you agree that it certainly appears to be intended to educate
the public, to inform the public on what the correct amount‘of
taxation of table games should be, at least in the eyes of the
asgociation? Isn't that pretty obvious from reading the text
of the radic ad?

ME. KAUFFMAN: Well, again, T think you have to go

Senate of Pennsylvania




T

10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

21

back to the language of the law, and it states, for indirect
communication, that an indirect communication could have "the
purpose or foreseeable effect...." 8o if that is the dominant
clause, then, yes, I think you could suggest -- you could come
to the conclugion that the purpoge of that radio ad was to
influence people to take action.

EEPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Thank vou.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Senator Wozniak.

SENATOR WOZNIAK: I hate to bhelabor thisg, but since
the Supreme Court made this decision that corporaticons are an
entity, and they can say whatever they want -- now, probably,
what we're talking about happened before that Supreme Court
decision -- how does that affect these corporations? I'm
assuming thesgse casinos are incorporated. How doeg it affect
them now in doing their effort in communicating to the public
their philosophy, since the Supreme Court says they can say
almost anything on behalf of any candidate?

MR. KAUFFMAN: Well, we're talking a little about
apples and oranges here. Are yeou talking about the Citizens

United v. FEC case last week? T mean, two weeks ago, I

believe. B&And that conly addressed campaign finance
contributions, so it doesn't really directly or even very much
indirectly affect this, other than the amount of money which
might be available for expenditures in the total realm of

influencing public policy by who gets elected. But last week's
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decigion doesgn't have any direct effect on this. But you're
right. I mean, the Supreme Court decision sort cof did say,
yveg, corporaticons are people, Too.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: One last question. Does the
disclosure law require registration only when that person or
organization is trying to influence the legiglature, or deoes it
also cover when a person or organization is attempting to
influence the courts?

MR. KAUFFMAN: The courts are, I believe, exempted
out of that. They have carved out their ocwn little niche and
claim to have their own disciplinary process, so it does only
affect, in my opinicn, only the executive branch and
legislative branch.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Thank vou.

One last call. Yes, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Representative Pashinsgki.

REPRESENTATIVE PASHINSKI: Thank you very much.

T'm gtill having a little difficulty trying to put
our arms around thiz. I mean, the purpose of advertising is to
gell something, whether you sell it to =z particular group or to
the body as a whole. The concept is to sgell something to the
body as a whole to buy a product or to make a decision. So if
the purpose of the ad is to influence the people who will then
be motivated to influence the legigliature or the ccurts, I find

it difficult to define that line.
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MR. KAUFFMAN: Is therxe a gquestion?

REPRESENTATIVE PASHINSKI: Well, I'm locking for some
definitive answer as to the difference between whether it's one
of these five categories of groups that are making some form of
plea to sell gsomething, as opposed to the gaming industry doing
the same thing.

MR. KAUFFMAN: TIg that for me?

REPRESENTATIVE PASHINSKI: Whoever would like to take
that.

MR. KAUFFMAN: I mean, vyou make a good point. And
this ad ig very carvefully worded. It deoesn't ask for a
specific action. It does not menticon a specific piece of
legislation or executive action. I mean, it is very, very
carefully crafted, and, you know, you could make the point
that, hey, you know, the ad is saying, look what a wonderful
corporation -- look what wonderful corporations we are, we're
bringing all these jobs to Pennsylvania, we're generating all
this revenue, please continue coming to our casinos, and help
support Pennsylvania. You could rsach that conclusion.

Other people could reach the conclusion, based on the
timing and where the ads were run and how many times they were
run, that it was, in effect, te have an impact on the
legislators themselves and their constituents.

REPRESENTATIVE PASHINSKI: It's a very gray line.

Thank vou.
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CHAIRMAN EARLL: Gentlemen, thank you very much.

Qkay, thig really is the last question.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Represgsentative Wansacsz.

REPRESENTATIVE WANSACZ: Thank you, Chairman Santoni.

I guess this guestion would be for you, Mr. Kauffman,
or Mr. Harhut. The guestion that I'm having ig, are you saving
that if -- let's say a group of individuals in any specific
organization throughout the State get together, and they're
concerned about an industry. And whether it's -- and we have
tong of industry in Pennsylvania that citizens are concerned
about. And they put out newsletters to keep =ach other
informed, they say, this is what's going on in the legislature,
if you're not happy, you know, contact them. Thesge are
obviously, may spend over, you know, just a mailing that they
mail each other out. Do they have to be considered a lobbying
group?

MR. KAUPEFMAN: Well, there ig a carve-cut in the
legislation for these organizations where newsletters are
specifically exempt.

REPRESENTATIVE WANSACZ: Sc newslethers are, hut,
okay. So any group that wants to get together, or let's say
they run a radic advertisement. They want to get their message
out ag a radio advertisement to their members in their specific
geographical area. Can they do that?

MR. KAUFFMAN: Well, sure, they can do that, but, you
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know, they would not have to register or report until they'wve
tripped the $2,500 threshold in doing things tc intentionally
affect the outcome cf lsgislative or executive actiomn.

REPRESENTATIVE WANSACZ: No, but I'm saying a group
gets together -- let's use the example Marcellus Shale. Very
pepular. A lot of citizens groups want Marcellus Shale. They
were talking about, you know, groups get together, they put out
newsletters, they may even do maybe commercials, maybe radio
advertisements. If they want to do that, not saying -- Just
saying, hey, this is what's geing on in the legislature, we
think it's a growing industry, ycu know, we want to keep vou
aware of it. Can they do that withcut having to file as a
lobbying firm?

MR. KAUFFMAN: Well, I guess 1 have to go back to my
original testimony. They have to trip the three triggers.

REPRESENTATIVE WANSACZ: Okay. and so, what I'm
trying to gay is, 1f you're saying, is it, can it -- I want to
know if these organizaticns, then -- should we be contacting
these organizations, saying, you know what, you have to watch
what vou're saying, cor is there a gray line, or should they
automatically be coming right out and saying, you all have to
get lobbyistsg if you get organized and you want to let the
people know what's going on in yvour area and that they think
they should be paying attention to the legislature? Because I

think if that happsns, I think vou're geoing to have a lot of

Senate of Pennsylvania




10

11

1z

13

14

15

16

17

21

22

23

24

25

36

groups throughout the State, on any issue, citizens groups,
home community groups, anything like that, that are going to
have to become lobbyilsts now.

MR. EKAUFFMAN: Well, vyou know, I think the
legiglators and the folks on the committee that drafted the
regs tried to be very careful, because we do not want to
digcourage citizens grcups from getting together and, you know,
making their pointg of view known. The key ig when we bring
together lots of resocurces to influence legislative action or
executive acticn is sort of the important trigger there. We
want to encourage people to be involved in the legislative
process and the advocacy process. So there ig a bit of a gray
area and a thin line between advocacy and lobbyving. We do not
want to discourage advocacy. We want people engaged in the
public policy process. But once they start payving people, or
once they start expending significant amounts of money, that
trips the trigger of when you have to register and report.

REPRESENTATIVE WANSACZ: Well, I think anytime that
vou get intc advocacy, you're going to deal with expenses.
You're going to deal with somebody giving up a lot of their own
personal time. So it really comes out to, then, how they're
doing it. They might be getting reimbursed expenses. I mean,
go, anytime citizens really get together, T think they have
that. Prcbably, homecwners organizations have that. And so, I

would be very careful about where I think we need to go,
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because 1f you do that, vyou may etart affecting these citizens
corganizations that are just specifically concerned about an
area or a specific industry.

Thank vou.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Thank vyou, gentlemen. Appreciate
your time.

Next, I would invite up to the front table Attorney
Richard Sprague, Chief Justice Emeritus Zappala, Ms. DeNaples,
Attcrney Hardy, Mr. Smukler, and Ms. Peck.

While we're waiting for our panel to get settled, for
the Membersgs' information, we have, since there are three
members of the Casino Asscciation, that being SugarHouse
Casinc, Mt. Airy, and the Rivers, we've invited repregsentatives
from the three organizationg Lo be here, and that would be Ms.
DeNaples, Mr. Hardy, and Attorney Sprague. And then we also
have the principals or affiliates or staff of the Casino
Agsociation, and that would be Justice Zappala, again Mr.
Sprague, Ms. Peck, and Mr. Smukler. Sc, if that kind of gives
yvou an overview of who's sitting before you.

Welcome, ladies and gentlemen. Before we get
started, I would ask that you all stand and raise your right
hand, and we're going to put you under oath.

(Whereupon, RICHARD A. SPRAGUE, STEPHEN A. ZAPPALA,

S5R., LISA DeNAPLES, DON SCHIFFER, CHARLES J. HARDY, KEN

SMUKLER, AND MICHELE ZAPPALA PECK, were duly sworn.)
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CHAIRMAN EARLL: Attorney Sprague, I understand that
yvou have an opening statement.

MR, SPRAGUE: Yes. I'm going to say may it please
the Court, but I--

CHAIRMAN EARLL: And, sir, before you begin, I hate
to interrupt vyou already, but ccould you perhaps introduce
everyone at the table so we know who's who before we get
starteg?

MR. SPRAGUE: Yes,

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Thank vyou.

MR. SPRAGUE: At the far left here is Don Schiffer,
who is the general coungel from Mt. Airy. Next in line is Lisa
DeNaples, a member of the board of directors of PCA.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Attorney Sprague, could you make
gsure your green light is on your microphone?

MR. SPRAGUE: Okay, I'll start over. To my far left
is Don Schiffer, who is general counsel for Mt. Airy. Next
here is Lisa DeNaples, who is a member of the board of
directors of PCA. To wmy immediate left is the former Chief
Justice of the Pennsylvania Supreme Court, Stephen Zappala. My
name ig Richard Sprague, and I'll get back to myself in a
moment. To my right is Mr. Smukler, who is the executive
director of the PCA. To hig right is Chuck Hardy, who is a
director of PCA and a member of my law firm. And to the far

right is Michele Peck, the daughter of Chief Justice Zappala
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and an employee of BCA.

CHAIRMAN EARLIL: Thank you. &2And as I said, 1
understand that vou have some opening remarks?

MRE. SPRAGUE: Yes. And I weculd like to f£irst thank
this jeoint committee and Chairlady Earll and Chairman Santoni
and the Members of this joint Senate and House committee. I
thank you for the opportunity to be here, and one of the
reasons that I thank you is there has been so much speculation
and what I believe ig miginformation about PCA that I think it
is very good to air it and to present to you what FCA is and to
answer your Juestions.

I want to jump ahead one second, though, because I
wags kind of taken aback when I heard Representative Schroder
télk about the radio ad in thisg case, and I want to suggest to
this joint committee that 1f it is conceded that the radio
ad--and I'm just dealing with that for the moment--does not
address any legislation, deoesn't refer to any legislation,
doesn't ask the listener of the radio ad to do anything, but in
Represeﬁtative Schroder's own words when he asked the question,
its purpose is to educate the public--those are the words that
were used--I would suggest to you that in no way can a notice
that is feor the purpose of educating the public be lobbying.

Furthermore, I'll go as far as to say that 1f this

jecint committee or any group was to try to suggest that

educating the public is lobbying and under control of a
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legisglative branch, vou are flouting the Constitution of the
United States. In no way can educating the public by itself be
congidered something that can be controlled and regulated by a
legislature.

But having said that, I think it is important that we
understand what is PCA. And I want to say, I talked about the
varioug people that I introduced, and I really didn't intrcduce
myself. My name ig Richard Spracue. I wear a number of hats,
and I think it's important to understand that. I am an owner
of one of the casinos, SugarHouse Cagino. In addition, I am
coungel for SugarHouse. In additien to that, I am the chairman
of the board of PCA. In additicn to that, I am counsel for
PCA. So I think you have to understand those various hats.

Now, let's talk about PCA. How did it come about?
When I obtained, with partners, a license for SugarHouse, I
thought it weoculd be wvery helpful for the gaming industry that
there be a trade associlation, not for the purpcse, then, of
lobbying, but for the purpose of facing issues that would be
common to all of the casinos that were now being created in
Penngylvania. There are numbers cof issues that don't just
involve one particular gaming place but are common to ths
entire industry. And I thought it would be a good idea -- and
by the way, I looked at other States. I saw that in just about
every other State where there is gaming, there zre trade

associations. 2and I thought it would be a good idea that, in
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Pennsylvania, there be a trade association to have all of the
casinos, frankly, the racinos, as well as the stand-alones,
part of this trade group.

I take credit, cr discredit, however you want to put
it, for that idea, and as a result, 1 regquested a meeting in
Harrisburg of all of the racinog and the stand-alcnes for the
purpose of discussing creating a trade asscciation. And we had
such a meeting. We had it, frankly, in February, and then
March of 2007. At that meeting came all of the racinos that
had licenses, all of the stand-alones that had licenseg, and we
discugsed forming a trade agsgociation. And by the way, thers
wag nothing secret akout that meeting.

And ag a result of that meeting, frankly, some
differences arose between the racetrack grcup and the
stand-alones, and I left the meeting thinking, I don't want to
form a trade association that has disputes right off the bat
within the trade association. 2and I thought it would make more
sense to form a trade association of just the stand-alones at
that time and, as a result, decided to form the Pennsylvania
Casinc Assoclation. That's the genesis. That's how it came
about. 3And in March of -- May, I'm sorry, May of 2007, we
filed articles of incorporation.

The initial board of directors -- and by the way, the
initial members of the PCA at that time were ML. Alry and

SugarHouse, just those two. And the directors at that time
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were myself and Louls DeNaples. Now, we went and formed our
trade association. The idea was to get the other stand-alone
casinos to join. I subseguently had talks with Foxwocds. They
have not yet Jjoined, but they indicated when they get their
feet on the ground, 1f they ever do, they will join the trade
association. When Neil Bluhm took over ownership of the Rivers
in Pittsburgh, the Rivers did join our association.

| Now, I'm the person who is on the board, as I said
initially, with Louis DeNaples, and from the beginning, T
needed people to give me ideas. I'm a lawyer. I'm not
somebody involved in gaming in that sense, and I wanted to have
the advantage cof knowing Pennsylvania. I wanted to know its
makeup politically, I wanted to know its makeup in terms of its

various interests, and I wanted to get the Chief Justice here,

Chief Justice Zappala, to be an advisor, somebody that I could

turn to who knew this State, who could give me information and
suggestions in terms of how to get this trade association
effective. Frankly, he resisted my overtures.

I can try to be persuasive, and in trying to be
persuasive, I decided we'll form our original office in
Pittsburgh, and I learned that Michele Peck could come to work
for me, at least part-time, and I hired her as a director of
operations. I also, frankly, hired her thinking it might help
in my trying to persuade her father to really come on board.

He resisted. And it was not until by March of 2008, sometime
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in the early part of 2008, that I persuaded the Chief Justice
Zappala to come on board as an advisor. The person who was
running it for me then -- we got a lease for a place in
Pittsburgh -- was Michele Peck. And at a certain time, and I
used Chief Justice Zappala as a consultant, as an advisor. I
went through milliong of discussions, thoughts, hearing
suggestions from him.

And while this was going on, sometime in about March
2008 as well, Louis DeNaples could not stay as a director, for
the reasons you all know, of the charges that have been brought
against him, and it was not thought appropriate that Louis
DeNaples would remain as a director, so Louls DeNapleg then
stepped out, and that's how his daughter, Lisa DeNaples, became
a director in place of Louis.

And T tried to get other stand-alones toc join ug,
engaged in talks with them. At a certain point -- and by the
way, yvou know, I notice that a Member of this committee
ig--it's interesting--on the one hand suggesting we're
lobbyists, which we're really not, except for very limited
lobbying by three e-mails, which I'11 get to. But except for
that, this trade association is not a lobbyist assgociation. We
intend to be, and I want to make that clear, and we are 1in
discussions with various lobbyists that we intend to select
one, and as soon as we do, we will register. [ want to make

that clear as well.
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But in the course -- you know, it was said by a
Member of this committee, she hadn't heard of us. Well, I
guess we're not such great lobbyists if you never heard of us.
But one of the reasons the PCA was not, for a period of time,
g0 active - I'm the guy that was running it, I who was
gspending, believe me, all my time in the wvaricusgs courts of
Pennsylvania fighting efforts to stop SugarHouses, as
Representative O'Brien knows well, being very artful against
us, but--

REPRESENTATIVE C'BRIEN: It's such a joy to welcome a
corporate constituent.

ME. SPRAGUE: Thank you. But in any event, a lot of
time was gpent fighting efforts to stop SugarHousgse from being
able to proceed in its building, and that took a lot of time.
In the meantime, I was meeting with Chief Justice Zappala,
getting ideas, thinking of things that would be in the area
that a trade agsociation would be interested in.

And let me just jump ahead, just to give you the
idea. When I say a trade association, we have an interest
right now, and I just had, on behalf of the trade asscciation,
a meeting with the people from Parx on what would be an area of
interest of an asscciaticn. Got nothing to do with lcbbying.
You all pagsed table games recently. The Gaming Beoard has to
pass regulations. They got to igsue some temporary regulations

now, because it will take a longer time, but when they issue
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the permanent one. So what do we do? I gat down, this is in
the PCA agpect with, he's not a member but interested in
gaming, with the person running Parx, Mr. Green. We want to
gee if the casinos -- whether they're a member of the PCA or
not is not important -- but the casino, the gaming industry,
whether we can have suggestions to the Gaming Board, if they
should request it--and they will and do-~as to what should be
some of the proposed rules. That's an area of common interest.

Another area of common interest, frankly -- you all
passed table games. Ag you know, there is swmoking allowed in
casinos. What do you do with the table games on that? 2nd one
of the areas that we're discussing is should the casinos adopt
and suggest a commen standard for the table games to be certain
ones smoking, other cnes not, or no smoking anywhere? These
are common issues, and this is the kind of thing you do with a
trade association.

Now, in the year 2008, working with Michele Peck as
operations director, I kept trying to work with Chief Justice
Zappala to find an executive director. I felt there ghould ke
samebody over Michele Feck. I tried to persuade Chief Justice
Zappala to become the executive director. He refused. We
interviewed numbers of pecople for the purpose of bringing them
on board, but none were satisfactcry. And I kept persuading ox
trying to persuade Chief Justice Zappala to take that position.

I did, in the year 2009, when he agreed, on a
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temporary basis, to become the executive director cf PCA, but
with a commitment by me that we will continue to lock for
somebody else to bececme the executive director. And when Chief
Justice Zappala agreed tc become the executive director, I
arrangad for hie salary to be $275,000 a vear for the work he
was doing and continuing to do for me. In fact, I had that
galary for him when he came on board as an adviscr and
consultant, and we continuved that salary. But we continued to
look for an executive director in 2009, and ultimately -- and I
have the date here -- in August of 2009, and effective
September 2009, we found somebody to become the executive
director. That was Mr. Smukler here. And we hired him as thes
executive director, and I named Chief Justice Zappala ag
chairman.

Now, when we hired Mr. Smukler, Chief Justice Zappala
felt that his salary at that $275%,000 was too high. He
gshouldn't be continuing to be paid that $275,000 since we had
hired, now, Mr. Smukler. I thought he was worth it. Asg far as
I'm concerned, he is worth it. But over my protests, in this
year, 2010, he himself cut his salary from that $275,000 to
£150,000. DNow, as we have told vyou, and as I gald in my letter
-- and by the way, I believe everybody's got my letter and the
letter that Representative Santoni sent to the board, soc I'm
not going to read what you already have, if that's all right

with you.
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But the only thing that I did, and I have the names
arcund here gomewhere., Do you have the names of the people
that I went and talked to? No, ne, the list ¢f -- oh, yveah. I
did, and Mr. Hardy, go to the following legislatcrs -- and this
is not in my SugarHouse hat; this is-in my PCA hat. And I went
to, names I'm sure you know, and I may mispronounce some:
Representative Civera, Representative Wansacz, Senator
Erickson, Senator Pileggil, Representative McCall, Senator
Tomlinson, Representative Perzel, Representative Eachus.

Why did I go to each of them? And let me make it
absolutely clear. When I went to each of them, my opening
gtatement tc each and every one of them is, I am here, and I
don't want you to do a thing for me. I do not want anything.
T'm not here asking for anything. I am here just to introduce
myself and Mr. Hardy, and to tell you about our association,
and to tell you that we have this trade association. I believe
I said to each one that I believe the courts are going to knock
out the prohibition on political contributions, and by the way,
just ag a little zide, with yvour thought about reform right now
and putting in the new act, your political prohibition, I
believe you'll find that's just as unconstitutional as what was
knocked out before, but for different reasons.

.But in any event, I went to each of these pecple, not
talking about any particular legislation, but just wanting to

intrcduce myself, letting them know that we have this
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assocliation, that we want to get to know the Members of the
legiglature. Why? Because it doesn't take anybody with a
brain. It'sgs cbvious that in the legislature, there are thoge
legislatorsg that are against gaming, there are those
legislators that are for gaming, there are those legislators
that are somewhat in betweesn, and we wanted to have some idea
of who does what and who's on which side.

Why? Frankly, because I thought that prohibition on
political activity someday is going to be knocked out, and I
wanted to be in a position, if it was knocked out, that I could
support people who I thought were friendly, and I could opposge
pecple that I thought would not be friendly. That's not
lobbying, that is just taking a position on who it is you want
to support and who you don't. And nothing with any of them in
terms of any legislation.

Now, ag we said, and I gaild in a responding letter to

Representative Santoni, we have not talked to one legislator

about any legislation, first. Secondly, and it's interesting,
because if vou logk at the Gaming Act -- not the Gaming Act,
the lobbying law. Excuse me cne second. If you locok at -- and
you were talking here with Mr. Kauffman and others -- in your

legislation of the lobbying law, and you talk about intent,
what do you have in there? The statement of intent and
jurisdiction. "The ability," and I'm reading from 1it, "The

ability of the people to exercise their fundamental authority
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and to have confidence in the integrity of the processes by
which laws are made and enforced in this Commonwealth demands
that the identity," that's the words, "the identity and scope
of activity," and I repeat the words again, "scope of activity
of those who are paid to influence the actions of the CGeneral
Assembly and the Executive Department be publicly and regularly
disclosed."

Before I get to whether we're under the exempiion,
what could be more meeting the intent of your Lobbying Act than
the three e-mails that we sent which were gent to every Member
of the legislature, not sent and given to somebody at a dinner
meeting, or not sent tc somebody at a private club, but sent by
ug to every Member of the legiglature and made public and
disclosed to the news media, and published by the news wmedia.
That's the first part.

Secondly, each of those e-mails were done in the game
manner. You know, it's interesting, I read, and I'm sure you
read, that cur Gowvernor was meeting with a lawyer from one of
the casginos to get something in your recent act, and there were
meetings between the Governor and this lawyer and some of your
leaders in the legiglature behind closed doors, not cut front.
What is it that we did? We published to everybody so that, in
fact, there is nobody who is unaware of, one -- ves, this was
an effort to influence the General Assembly. No dispute, that

ig lobbying. The issue is, one, we come under the broad
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statement of intent. We disclosed it.

But more importantly -- and you may call it
technical, but it's the law ags you wrote it, as you know and
from what we have presented to you -- there is an exemption.

S50 not only did we -- this isn't our meeting with any of vyou.
Not one of you met with us. When one of you said you never
heard of us, well, we didn't meet with any of you. But we
publicly published what our position is. Yesg, that comes undexr
lobbying. I do not dispute that. But it was an e-mail to
every Member of the legislature. You all use e-mail. It costsg
voul nothing te push that button and gend it God knows where and
to everybedy. We gave you the benefit cof the doubt and said
$10, probably $9.55 too much. And we tocok Mr. Smukler, because
we didn't get paid for thisg, but we tock Mr. Smukler's salary,
figured it out on an hourly basgis, he spent four and a half --
what was the number?

MR. SMUKLER: One and a half hours on each e-mail.

MR. SPRAGUE: All right, sc¢ four and a half hours.

8o we spent $450. Now, under your Lobbying Act -- and by the
way, for you all to be upget about this, when all that we did
is publish to everybody what we did, I think there's other
things for you to be upset about, not this, but -- and I'l1l
finish shortly. 1T can always sense those looks. But my point
is that you've got an exemption in the act for if it ig under

20 hours. This was under 20 hours. There's an exemption in
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the act 1f the expenses are under $2,500 in the guarter. This
ig clearly under that. So you do not, therefore, under your
act, register. If you don't like that act, and you wani to
change the act, you know, I think it's silly, and I don't think
this is an issue to be fighting here when all we're talking
about is something that was mailed to everybody.

Now, there's one cother argument, and I detected that
in some of the guestions being asked, about a principal, as
though the principal, even 1f he spende nothing, has to file
and say, I spent nothing in that quarter. But 1f you look at
the language there in the Lobbying Act, the language is a
"registered principal." We're not registered in the first
place because we've done nothing to cause to be registered.
Once you're registered, then vyes, you have to, every quarter,
file your report. But you don't do that until you are
registered.

Now, we have done nothing other than what I have just
said. I know, and, you know, it's beyond me what the
legislative purpose is, and that's where your limitations are,
even a committee of the legislature. But somebody raises
whether Chief Justice Zappala should have filed on his tax
form, Federal tax form. I don't know what your legislative
purpose is in termg of a Federal tax form, and I never have
known the Pennsylvania legislature to be an arm of the United

States government in terms of its tax policies, but things
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change.

But I want to make clear to you, first place, all of
the insinuations that have been made, and I think,
unfortunately, trying to smear the good name of the former
Chief Justice, suggest that he didn't file for 2008. He was
not an officer in 2008. He became an officer in 2009. That
form does not get filed until 2010, as you know. In addition,
cn the form that was filed, and we have it here, and we'll give
it toc you in evidence 1f you want, the accountant for PCA --
and I don't know if any of you fill out your own tax returns.
I couldn't possibly do it. I rely on accountants, and I would
be lost without them, But I have the document from the
accountant here. He wanted a list of the officersg and
directors. Chief Justice Zappala is nct an officer. So there
wags nothing that was filed in terms of what the accountant
asked for that was in any way a falling, improper.

The bottom line is PCA has done absolutely nothing
that is in any way wrong, that violates the spirit of anvthing.
You can take your most liberal readings. We have done it the
reverse way. We have done it the liberal way, by the three
lobbying activities, publishing them for the world to see, not
doing it kehind a closed door, not doing it just meeting
gsomebody for dinner. That's where we are. Thank you.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Does anyone else on the panel have

any comment before we begin the guestioning?
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{No regponse. )

CHATIEMAN EARLL: Questions?

Senator White.

SENATOR D. WHITE: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Mr. Sprague, I can‘t tell you how relieved I am,
because I'm cne of Senators that did not, in his district, get
a casino, and I voted, in both cases, both times, positively
for slots and then also the expansion to table games. So to
hear you describe or have described by others tc have PCA be a
citizens group or a trade associaticn, I breathe a sigh of
relief, because I thought 1t was mayvbe something much more than
that. So I thank vyou for that.

But I wantesd to asgk Justice Zappala, in regards to
your expertise in trade associlations, what exactly were your
dutieg? I mean, from the time that you were approached by Mr.
éprague and conceded to go ahead and join PCA, did you have a
contract? Was it written? Would vyou provide any details to us
or a copy of that transaction? Just how formal was this, or
was it just some form of just sitting around drinking a cup of
ccffea?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: First, let me start by saving,
I'm extremely prejudiced. I spent 23 vyears in the judiciary,
and I have such great respect for the courts. I also have
regpect for the equal brancheg of government. In my tenure as

a jurist, I had been called upon to do various and sundry
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matters involving the courxts, and I think Representative
Caltagirone knows this. We started on concepts which people
gsaid did not exist, could not be done, and yet we did and
turned it around while I was on the courts. I'm referring
gpecifically to what I had done as it relates to the
implementation of the entire computer program of the judicial
gystem. We did it without one deollar of tax monesy. As a
matter of fact, the only money that we got was given to ug as a
locan by Senator Tilghman, which was ingisted it be paid back.
Every dollar, every dime that was spent and has been spent by
the State judicial computer fund are all fee-generated by
users.

I enjoyed the courts. Upon my retirement, I was
asked by Chief Justice Cappy to remain in the position of Chief
Justice Emeritus. An order was appropriately drawn in January
of 2003. The order named me as a Chief Justice Emeritus. I
was delegated to do nonadjudicatory matters. I wasg answerable
directly to the Chief Justice, and I was paid on a per diem
rate like any other senior judge on the number of days which I
would work. I enjoyed that work.

I stayed in that position until 2007. And I'll get
to your guestion. In 2007, it became apparent tc me, because
of my close relationship with Chief Justice Cappy., that he was
going to retire from the bench. At that point, in the latter

part of 2007, I had taken the choice of whether to remain,
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which I cculd have, under Chief Justice Castille, seek the
return of my license and practice law, which I refused to do,
or possibly entertain another area which was novel and fertile,
as far as I wag concerned, which was the gaming industry. 2and
as Mr. Sprague had indicated before, he had approached me on
several occasions, which I was not interested.

But hecauge, at the time, and I'm referring gomewhere
around September of 2007, knowing what was going to happen with
the Chief Juétice, I decided maybe to give it some thought. I
then gave it some thought but did not become an official person
with the Casinc Agscociation until March of 2008. I only tock
that pogition predicated upon twe things -- three thingg. One,
I want no contract, I have no contract, and I sought no
contract. And I could leave tomorrow, because that's the way I
wanted it. You shake my hand, and I'll shake yours.

Number two, I insisted that my office and my title
would never be used for lcokbying purposes. I have known many
of you sitting here, and you know me, and there isn’'t one who
has ever saild I've contacted them relative gaming or any other
matter. And number three, I said I would not, under any
circumstances, renew my license to practice law, because I felt
it would be a prostitution of my position.

On that predicate, I did go to work, and I was giving
as much counseling as possible as relates te My, Sprague and

the asscciation. I do have a varied field, not cnly in the
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Judiciary for 23 vears, but involved with Allegheny County
pelitics, which Mr. Ferlec is aware of, for 15 years prior to
that time. I was invelved with the county commissioners, I was
involved as far as the director of planning and development, I
wag the county solicitor, I was responsgible for 129
municipalities, and I was the one who structured the Police and
Fire Academy.

If you want to know about Erie, I can talk about
Tullioc and things that I had done with him. If you want to
talk about Scranton, I've done that. So when you talk in termg
of what I had to offer, I think it was a myriad of wvaried
possibilities of knowledge across the State.

Now, do you have any other questions, Senator?

SENATOR D. WHITE: Yes, I sure do.

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: All right.

SENATOR D. WHITE: So, once again, my guestion 1is
whether you had a contract, whether it was written--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: The answer 1s no.

SENATOR D. WHITE: No. And your compensation in
2007, or 2008, did you have specific duties that you were asked
to do in this organization or--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: In 2007, I was not employed by
the association.

SENATOR D. WHITE: A1l right, 2008.

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: In 2008, I can't even tell you
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the number of meetings I had with Mr. Sprague, some of the
principals of the associations, talking in terms of some other
people who I talked to perscnally about coming on board in
trying to captivate this idea of a new industry in the State of
Pennsylvania.

SENATOR D. WEITE: Did vyvou have a job description?
There wasn't anything formal at all then?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: No, I did not have a job
description, Senator.

SENATOR D. WHITE: And wag your daughter -- then, she
helped recruit you into the PCA, according to Mr. Sprague. Is
that right?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: No, she was enticed to come in
to bring me in. It wag in reverse, Senator.

SENATCR D. WHITE: OQkay, in reverse of that. Now,
all right -- so, it deoesn't look like I'm getting anywhere
where it comes to any defined duties under the PCA for anybody.
Is that--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPATA: That's not necesggarily true. I
said the defined duties I had waz anywnere, anytime, anvhow,
where there was information needed by the PCA, by Mr. Spragus,
by any of the members. My accessibility was there on a 7/24.
Now, I can't divulge what we discussed, whether it would be
strategy or cther matters. But you can ask him, and if it

wasn't worth it, he shcould have fired me. 5o I did have
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defined duties as it relates to consulting with him and a
resource person.

SENATOR D. WHITE: I thank you, Chief Justice, and
I'll wait for guestions later.

Madam Chairman, thank vou.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Just for the record, there
wag, in the packets that were handed cut, Jjob descriptions for
executive director and director of cperationg. So it should be
in the packets cof all the Members.

To open up qguestions on the House side is Chairman
Schroder.

MR. SPRAGUE: May I say, Representative Santoni?

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Please.

MR. SPRAGUE: Yeg, once we do have the regular
executive director, we do have the job description that you
have, and it was sent to vou, and I think, and also the
director of operaticns, which iz Michele Peck. The one other
thing I would like to add, which I forget to say, if I may:
When I got the letter from Representative Santoni -- and I want
all the Members of the committee to know this -- I not only
responded, but I called Represgentative Santoni, because I
didn't want any mystery here. And I asked him, could we meet?
And I would have Chief Justice Zappala with me, and we intended
to meet in -- Representative Santcni picked Reading, at his

office, and Chief Justice Zappala came from Pittsburgh for that
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meeting, which was set up for January 2nd. Unfortunately, the
Representative's office did not mark it down, and

Representative Santonl was in Harrisburg. But we conferred on
the phone with the idea of yet meeting and answering guestions.

And then, of course, when we got word of this
hearing, I must suggest, maybe you all know it, but again, I
did make the coffer -- I want you all to know it -- to
Chairperson Earll as well, that we would be glad to come in and
meet with Chairperscn Earll and Chairman Santoni. But they
felt -- and I'm not finding any fault with it -- that since =a
hearing had been set up, and all you got to do to arrange a
hearing, vyou know, let's have the hearing.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Well, actually, Attorney Sprague,
that's not the reason we didn't meet privately. The
allegaticns and the circumstances surrcunding the association
and your activities have been raisged in a wvery public way, so
we thought that it might be better for you to address them in a
very public way. It had nothing to do with already having a
hearing scheduled.

MR. SPRAGUE: Okay. Well, that's fine. All I want
to make sure is I want everybody to understand that we offered
to make ourselves available from the get-go.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONT : Thank vou.

We'll move to questiong with Chairman Schroder,

please.
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REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Thank vyou, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. I think,
earlier, we saw an example of Mr. Sprague'sg legendary courtroom
advocacy on display here, and I want to go back to where he
sought to characterize my remarks about the issue of the radio
ad. And I would just like to state that at no time did I say,
concede, or suggest that the radic ad did not fall under
indirect communicationsg. All I was suggesting was that at the
very least, 1t comstituted an educaticnal component, which
brings me, I guess, to the crux of the cne guestion that I
have.

Under the definition of indirsct communication, it
includes educatiocnal campaigns on public interest. So I guess
my question to you, Mr. Sprague, is this: Do you argue that
your ad deoes not fall under an educational campaign on public
interest, or do you argue that that part of the bill is
unconstituticnal, or both?

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, let me say this. I think you got
to locock at the first part there, ERepresentative Schroder, which

makes 1t c¢lear that this indirect is, and the words are there,

"to take action" -- and that is an essential part, 1f vou read
that whole paragraph -- and to take action is what has to be
part of that to come under your Lobbying Act. Just information

is not to take action. That lets the lisgtener just listen.

I mean, it would be a sorry state in this country if
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you just put something out, informaticnal, and people don't
take action on it, and you try to suggest that's lobbying? You
know, free speech, and I don't mean to sound corny on this
thing, is basic. The Supreme Court of the United States -- you
gaw the ruling. Thoge that argue it maybe went too far in the
rights it's given corporations, but the bottom line is that
unless you can say there is no other interpretation, then you
can't have that held constitutional.

So I guess my answer te you really isg, I think that
if you take the phrase that's in there "to take action" as
modifying the resgt, this is not a radio ad. By the way, you
heard even Mr. Kauffman. I don't know if he meant to give us
credit. He said this wasg very well drawn. Well, mavbe it was
well drawn, but it meets what is the exemption there. And vyes,
if yvou interpret it broader than that, it is unconstitutional,
and, you know, you want to take me to court on it? Be my
guest.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Well, I guess the guestion
iz, will you, or will vou be recruiting a plaintiff to take to
court on that issue, as well as the campzign contribution
issue, which you raised?

MER. SPRAGUE: Well, I'm glad you asked me that
gquestion. I have really been in discussions con the issue of
whether or not I should, on behalf of wmysgelf -- remember, I'm

an owner in SugarHouse in that capacity -- take this litigation
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on, since it now, and it would be wvioclative of our present
election law for a corporation to obviously have commercials
favoring or disfavoring a candidate, whether I should have the
Cagino Agscciation take it on, or stand by and see if zomeone
elsge doesg 1t.

And that reminds me. Can I take up, and it'e in
answer to your question, because I know part of the attack is
the matter of Peter DePaul's attack on the earlier act in
getting the campaign contribution part declared
unconstitutional. I would like to get across, because--

SENATCR ORIE: Madam Chairman, I'm just going to ask
-- there have not bkeen any questions he's going off. I hope
there is some control and congtraint in regards to questions
and him answering questicns. I mean, I'd love to hear hisg
dissertation all day, but there are Members here that have
pointed questions and would certainly like--

CHATIRMAN EARLL: I understand, Senatcr. I would
expect that the Member that asked the guestion would be able to
determine whether the response is responsive or not and corral
the witness if it's not.

T will give you leeway, however, though, on this
iggue of -- because we‘re all curious about why the association
paid Mr. DePaul $100,000, and at what time that payment was
made, and what the purpose of that payment was.

MR. SPRAGUE: I thought that really rose from
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Representative Schroder's question, what would I dc about the
present act? So I wanted to get that clear.

Let me make it clear. Mr. DePaul brought hig
litigation strictly on his own. There was a suggestion
gsomewhere that we paid his law firm for it. Not true. Mr.
DePaul brought his litigation. He brought it because he had
always made campaign contributions. He felt this was
unconstitutional. He paid, with his cwn money, the law firm.
We had nothing to do with that. We were not the law firm.
That was a law firm cuf in Pittsburgh.

When Mr. DePaul was successful in that, hecause of my
view that we were a trade aggsociation and we were interested in
gaming from the whole standpoint of the State, the
Commonwealth, I felt this was scmething that was favorable for
the whole gaming casino, the whole gaming industry.r And I
suggested that we then pay Mr. DePaul after the fact and
reimburse him for what he had paid. That's the short and
gimple of it.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: And let me ke clear, just
to make sure I understood part of your earlier comments. One
of the reasons that you might want to have the more recent
legislation prchibiting campalgn contributicons struck down is
s0 that either you or your corganization can go after those
Members who are opposed to gambling.

MR. SPRAGUE: Absolutely.
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REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCDER: Q(Okay, thank vou.

Now, moving on to--

MR. SPRAGUE: Can I finish my answer?

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCDER: I thought you did.

MR. SPRAGUE: No, I didn't.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Oh, my apologies.

MR. SPRAGUE: That's all right. You know, we in
SugarHouse were a bit disadvantaged because the people that
were opposed to gaming and did not want SugarHouse to be
develcped, they could raise money, they could support you
legislators, they could raise money and oppose you legislators
that wanted to be either helpful or harmful. BRBut under the law
as it existed at that time, our arms were behind our back. The
opponents could raise all the money they wanted to, and we had
to sit there and get smacked in the face. So yes, I am very
much in favor of the gaming industry being able to take part in
the political process. And I know that you say, well, there's
an aroma of corruption in it. If you read the recent Supreme
Court opinion of the United States, they'll tell you that that
of itgelf isn't gufficient.

Thank vou.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCDER: I read the opinicon in the

DePaul case, and it very much does speak to that aroma that you

talk about. However, your opponents didn't have the power of

direct appeal to the Supreme Court, though, did they?
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MR. SPRAGUE: My opponents? In which matter?

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: The opponents you were just
speaking of that supposedly raised all that money to support
opponentg of gambling. 2All I'm saying is that under ths law,
you might have had some capabilities that they didn't.

MR. SPRAGUE: That's true.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Okay. Now, on vour letter
concerning the e-mails, you calculated the perscnnel costs
spent preparing and sending those. Mr. Sprague, what I didn't
gee in this section is any mention of office expenses. Did you
calculate office expenses, such as whatever lease o£ rent your
office in Pittsburgh would cost, such as utilities, such as,
you know, light, you know, electricity, leagsing of computers,
copying machines, whatever these cffice expenses would add up
to? I didn't see any menticn of them in here. Was that a --
what was the reagon for that, I guess?

MR. SPRAGUE: The reason for that, Repregentative
Schroder, is that office is not, as I tried toc make clear, a
lobbying office. I did not think -- to answer your guestion, I
did not compute those expenses in here because I don't think
that is appropriate. BRut I did take Mr. Smukler's time because
he was doing something at that moment for lobbying. But that
office is not a lobkbying office, as I've tried to make clear.

MR. SMUKLER: And may I just add, the s-mails were

generated out of Philadelphia on my computer out of
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time, I mean, for the three e-mails was calculated as my time
to do it in Philadelphia. None of the activity of generating
that e-mail was done in the Pittsburgh office. Not to say that
what Mr. Sprague says is not controlling, it's just so that vyou
understand that the generation of the e-mail was done in a
Philadelphia office.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODEER: I appreciate that
clarification. So none of the galaries of any of the
principals were apportioned into the personnel time of $450 to
make these e-mails, it was just your efforts, Mr. Smukler?

MR. SMUKLER: That's correct.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: 0Okay. Just give me one
moment .

All right. Just so I'm clear, I had thought in vour
letter, Mr. Sprague -- and I admittedly am characterizing it
here, but this is how I read it, with regards tc the e-mails --
you were not arguing that that was not lobbying, just that you
hadn't met the $2,500 threshold.

MR. SPRAGUE: You're absgolutely correct, and I want
to make it clear, that is lobbying. That ig exactly what
lobbying is, and I was trying to influence the legisglature.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCDER: I understand that, and I
guegsg that's what brought te my mind the question about the

office expenses not being in there. All right, I'm going to
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need to think about that for a moment.

Finally, I will close by this question or two. You
state in your testimony that you have tried to interpret and
comply with this law in the most liberal way, I guess, meaning
the mest expansive reading of it. Yet I then hear vyou tegtify
that ?ou walk intc leadership cffices and issue a disclaimer
gaying, oh, I'm nct here, vou know, I don't want you to do
anything for me, I'm not asking for anything, just want to
introduce, and this, that, and the other thing. Are vou
suggesting that anyone can use such a disclaimer to avoid
compliance with this act? Because that's what it sounded like
to me.

MR. SPRAGUE: No, no, no. What -- no, sir. What I
was saying was that the only meeting that I had with
legislators were those meetings, and I wanted them to feel -- I
didn't know these people. I'm introducing myself tc them, and
I wanted them to feel comfortable that I'm not here to talk to
you about any legislation. I'm not here asking you for any
favors or anything. I wanted them to feel right off the bat--

I mean, Repregentative Schroder, vou don't know me,
but T pbelieve in being candid. I believe in being blunt. I

don't like to beat around the bush. I'm meeting these pecple,

arnid I know what kind of lives vyou all live, I know -- I've been
around long enough. I know the concerns you have when
somebody, a stranger, comes in your office. I wanted them to
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know right off the bat, I'm not asgsking for a thing. I don't
mean to say that I c¢ould say that and then do something that,
in fact, 1is viclative of the lobbying law, and then I toct my
heorn and say, oh, I gaid I didn't want anything. I said it forxr
that reason, for them to feel comfortakle, and if you want to
go on with your hearings and invite every one of them in, if
vou want, and you can establish that's exactly what occurred.
Nothing was asked.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCODER: And I will certainly take
vour word for that.

Finally, I just want to say that I do take exception
to the suggestions, and sort of the scolding and what T saw as
mockery, about us, you know, having more important things to be
concerned about than really the public integrity that is the
Lobbyist Disclosure Act. So--

Sorry, do we have any water?

Well, T'll just close on that, and thank you.

MR. SPRAGUE: <Can I comment, though, on what vyou d4did
say, Representative Schroder?

CHATRMAN EARLL: Yeah, we need to move con here,
please.

Senator Orie.

SENATOR CRIE: Thank you.

Mr. Smukler, maybe one of the problems I have here is

the quotes that you and Mr. Hardy made to the paper in 20009.
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Are you an attorney, sir, Mr. Smukler?

MR. SMUKLER: A nonpracticing attorney.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. In yvour statement on October
25, 2009, to the Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, vyou were agked
specifically about the organization, and your gquote, if I may
use it, "The asscciation has been inconspicuocus until this
month, but that doesn't mean it's been inactive, Mr. Smukler
gaid....Mr. Smukler said...until now, the asscciation's focug
had been on litigation rather than legiglation. 'There was a
lot of litigation...going on.'" And when you refer tc this
litigation, I just wanted to see, and I was loocking that over,
on 7/12/07, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court rejects the appeal
challenging DeNapleg' licenge. and I believe at that time, Mr.
DeNaples was represented by you, Mr. Sprague. 2Am I correct?

MR. SPRAGUE: Yes.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. &And then on 10/2/07, a stay is
entered by Justice Castille by the Suprewme Court involving Mr.
DeNaples. 2Again, I believe that's you, Mr. Sprague, in the
role cf attorney for Mr. DeNaples, your bhoard of directeor?

ME. SPRAGUE: You're correct.

SENATOR ORIE: And then on 11/28/07, Peter DePaul,
represented by Buchanan Ingersoll, files an order saying, about
the constitutionality of prohibiting caszino owners. 2And then
on 12/11/07, the Supreme Court orders DeNaples to appear before

the grand jury. On 5/2/08, the Penngylvania Supreme Court
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exercises King's Bench, and again, that's filed by you, am I
correct, Mr. Sprague? The petition.

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, you had a whole lot of predicates
in there. If your question is just on the last, ves.

SENATOR ORIE: Yes, the Xing's Bench, that's what
it's on. And on 4/30/09, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court, in a
5-to-1 vote, invalidates the provision barring casino cowners
from making contributions to political campailgns, something
that you didn't have anything tc do with the lawsuit but
certainly supported this. And then on 5/1/09, the PCA pays
$100,000 to DePaul.

Is that what you were referring, about litigation,
Mr. Smukler?

MR. SMUKLER: No. I misspcke.

SENATOR ORIE: You misspoke in regards to those
quotes?

MR. SMUKLER: No, no, nc. With regards to the
litigation, I misspoke. I was taken to the woodshed. I was
told that I had misspoken. I will say--

SENATOR ORIE: Who took you to the -- who's the one
who admonished--

ME. SMUKLER: Chuck Hardy, Dick Sprague.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay.

MR. SMUKLER: There ig no shortage of people around

here that would take me to the woodshed.
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SENATOR ORIE: And Mr. Smukler, mavbe you could
answer for me, too. You indicate that ag far as vou're
concerned, Mr. Zappala was with this casinc organization since
the onset. Did you get taken to the woodshed over making that
statement as well, Iin that same article?

MR. SMUKLER: I wasg not taken to the woodshed for
that comment, but I don't know -- gince the onset--

SENATOR ORIE: So, does that mean it's true or not
true? Because I don't know, today, because I'm hearing he now
started in -- well, I'm going to get to Mr. Zappala. When do
yvou understand Mr. Zappala--

MR. SMUKLER: I started in September of 2009.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay.

MR. SMUKLER: And so he was clearly there before I
was there. He was there well before I was there. Whether
technically that meant the onset of the incorporaticn
documents, frankly, T was talking tc a reporter who was not
that concerned with the technical aspscts of when he started
his service.

SENATORE CRIE: Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Hardy, now, vou took Mr. Smukler to the woodshed,
so I'm going to ask you some questions. In this same article,
you're indicating, in this article, that both the Zappalas were
with this organization from the very beginning. "Mr. Hardy

said he didn't know the extent" but that both of them "had been
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with the association from the [very] beginning."

MR. HARDY: To my mind, they both were in from the
earliest days that I was actively involved. At that time, as
Mr. Sprague explained, he was trying to convince Chief Justice
Zappala to take a role, and they were talking about the Casino
Agsociation, which was going -- was formed by that time, I
believe, and being formed. And from the very first employes
that I'm aware of who came cnboard was Michele Peck, who came
on, I beliewve, in -- I don't want to -- the first year that we
filed a tax return, I belisve, in 2007, and she was not a W-4
emplovee but a 1099 employee for a few months.

SENATOR CRIE: Okay. Ms. Peck, could you answer a
guestion for me? In 2008, the salary for the PCA was listed as
$400,000. Can we agsume, gince you were the only one who
supposedly worked for them in 2008, that that entire salary
went to you?

MS. PECK: I--

MR. HARDY: I didn't say she was the only one
working. She was the first one who came onboard and was paid.

MS. PECK: Well, I have no problem, asg long as Mr.
Sprague's all right with this, I can disclose my salary? Do
you have any problem with that, Mr. Sprague?

MR. SPRAGUE: No.

MS. PECK: I make $65,000 a year, so that salary is

not $400,000.
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SENATOR QORIE: Ckay.

MS. PECK: That first year of szet-up costs was
setting up the office. I was hired November 1lst to start
setting up an office in Pittsburgh.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. And were you provided with what
your roles were as the financial operator?

MS. PECK: No.

SENATOR ORIE: Your duties?

MS. PECK: I was told to establish an office in
Pittsburgh, and that's what I did.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay--

MS. PECK: I loocked--

SENATCR CRIE: So vou're the [inancial operator, and
you're listed under the IRS forms as that. You were not given
a job description as to what that entailed?

MS. PECK: I was not the financial operator. We
hired -- I hired an accounting firm to come in. I have a
bookkeeper that pays all cur bkills, but I oversee the payment
of billeg and the filing of forms.

SENATOR ORIE: So when Mr. Sprague describes vyour
role in the letter that he provided to us that you are the
operations director and one in charge of the financial records,
who did you hire?

MS. Peck: I hired Lally and Lally, and our

accountant's name isg Randy.
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SENATOR CRIE: 0Okay, and what were your specific
duties for the Pennsylvania Cagino Association?

MS. PECE: When I was hired in November of 2007, I
went out and I searched for a location for the office. I set
up the office. I did everything from decorate the walls to
bring in a tech perscn to set up the computers. I put the
telephones in, I brought in the accountant and a bookkeeper so
that we could have our bills paid. I sign the checks, they
send the checks cut. I work on a day-to-day operation with
whatever needs to be done. And--

SENATOR ORIE: Who did you report to?

M5. PRECEK: Mr. Sprague.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. And what were your specific
skills, training, or experience for this job?

MS. PECK: Well, I think he was lucky to have me,
because when I was hired in November of 2007, I was--

MR. SPRAGUE: May I enter an cbjection? She can
answer, but, you know, there's got to be questions related to a
legigslative purpose, and I suggest to the Members of this whole
committee, joint committee, cquestions of this nature have
nothing te do with the Lobbying Act or a legislative purpose.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Attorney S8prague, I do think that we
need some leeway in this line of guesticning becausgse we don't
know what the association has done, what your individual

members of the association are responsible for, or yvour staff.
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So -- and that's not ocur fault that we don't know any of that.
So there is going to be some leeway here.

MS. PECK: £As a background, I am a business graduate,
I was in retail and marketing before I went to law school and
got my law, my J.D. When Mr. Sprague asked me te come to work
in November of 2007, I had just been appointed ontc what's
called the Board of Viewers in Allegheny County. In my role as
operaticons director with the Casince Association, I told him
upfrent that I would do whatever I could, but my first priority
was with the Board of Viewers asg a Special Master.

With my background in business, I knew how to set up
an office and operations, and I knew how to work with the
day-to-day business that was going on in the office, and that's
what I did. So whatever came up in the office, I addressed.

SENATCR ORIE: Okay, and what reccrds -- under the
job description that you never saw but Mr. Spragus shared with
us in the letter that he responded to the Majority Chairman in
the Houge, it says that vou're responsible for the records, the
office records. What records do you keep on behalf of the PCA?

MS. PECK: Well, I keep all of the, I guesg all the
payment records, anvbody that's been paid. I have all the
bookkeeping that cur bockkeeper gives me for the years of '07,
‘08, and '09. Whatever records the crganization needs to keep,
I have.

SENATOR ORIE: 2And when you say vou work for the PCA
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and you were appointed tc the Board of Viewers, how many hours
would you work for the PCA, and how many hours would you work
for the Bcard of Viewers a week?

MS. PECK: I wcrked for the Beard of Viewers ag many
hours as was needed. I worked for the PCA in whatever extra
heurs I had and whatever time was avallable in order to get
everything done. So if I had to work weekends, I worked
weekends; if I had to work nights, I worked nights.

SENATOR ORIE: And did you have a written contract as

to your--

MS. PECK: No.

SENATOR CRIE: No written contract?

MS. PECK: No.

SENATOR ORIE: Just, you'd work when you had to work,
and--

MS. PECK: We didn't have a prcblem. Things were
getting done.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. Chief Justice, I have a few
gquestions for you. In 2007, vyou were working fcr the courts,
the AOPC, and you were sgtill working for the Supremes Court, is
that correct, as a senior judge on the technoclogy? And that--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: No. No, that is not correct.

SENATCR ORIE: Okay. What would your rcle have been
in 2007 with the Supreme Court?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: 2007, I probably was doing the
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same things I was doing in 2003, 2004, 2005, and 2006, and that
ig working closely with Chief Justice Cappy on any issues which
Chief Justice Cappy deemed appropriate as far as me handling,
whether it was budgetary, whether it was a computer, whether it
wag an issue involving something involving problems with other
judicial districts, whether it was the center which was built.
I'm trying to think of all the various things that I have done
with the Chief Justice. But anything involving the court.
Chief Justice Cappy and I were very close, as far asg
administration.

SENATOR ORIE: 0Okay, and T have in front of me your
financial interests. It says you were paid by Sprague and
Sprague, indirectly.

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Yes.

SENATOR ORIE: Could you explain that to me?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: In 2007, I think it was in the
early part of 2007, I was approached by the Sprague law firm
for the purpose of doing some independent work which involved
nonlitigation. The nonlitigation work as was given to me was
the issue as to the propriety of billing by a law firm. There
was guaranteed, in which I was assured, there was absolutely no
litigation pending, and this was strictly in the preparation of
whatever need the Sprague firm had for their <¢lient. I then
approached Chief Justice Cappy, discussed the matter with him,

and as long as it was nonadijudicatery, as long as it had nc
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relevance as far as any lawsuits, either pending or possible, I
was able to do what I wanted to do. I had no problems.
Therefore, I did the report, submitted it to the Sprague law
firm, and whatever happened, happened. And it was reported cn
my form.

SENATOR CRIE: Could you tell me, Chief Justice, when
wag the first time you worked for the Pennsylvania Casgino
Association, and what amount were you paid for working for
them?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: The first time 1 went to work
with the Casino Association was, I think, March or April of
2008.

SENATOR QRIE: And what was yvour salary at that time?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: The salary, I think, agreed
upon at that time, I think Mr. Sprague indicated, was going to
be $275,000 a year.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. BAnd Ms. Peck, when I asked vou
about 2008, vou said, and you got permisgsion, I apologize, I
forget, how much were you paid?

MS. PECK: 565,000 a year.

SENATOR ORIE: And Chief Justice, since you were the
executive director, and the total costs for salaries were
5400,000, where -- who got paid this other amount of money?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Well, I wasn't the executive

director, I don't think, until 200%. I had no title in 2008.
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SENATOR ORIE: Okay.

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: So where was the other mcney
paid?

SENATOR ORIE: Do you know of anyone else that was
paid? Because this--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Oh, yeah., We had one gentleman
that's been with us from the inception, I think, Mr. Alberts.
There was cther amounts paid. I'm trying to think who else,
but that wasn't my bailiwick. I don't know.

SENATOR QRIE: Mr. Sprague, when you provided your
letter of December 1st where you list all the employees, is
there a reason why Mr. Alberts isn't listed, since he was with
this organization since the onset?

MR. SPRAGUE: I never hired him. He was hired by--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Michele.

MR. SPRAGUE: --Michele Peck.

SENATOR QORIE: But you would agree, you're counsel to
the Casino Associatiocn.

MR. SPRAGUE: Pardon?

SENATOR ORIE: You're counsel, sir, to the Casino
Aggociation., You -- they can hire whoever they want, and you
don't know who they hire?

MR. SPRAGUE: I didn't say I didn't know. I =zaid zhe
hired him. He wag a low pcesition. It's not sacmebody that I

thought of.
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SENATOR ORIE: 5o when you -- go let me make this
clear. 8o as of December 1lst, other than Mr. Alberts, i1s there
any--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: December 1st of what vear,
madam?

SENATOR ORIE: The letter he wrote, December 2009,
that he wrote in response, other than Mr. Alberts, are all
other -- are there any other employees that we do not know of
today that we should know of?

MRE. SPRAGUE: I don't know. Could I have my letter,
please?

SENATOR ORIE: And while you're looking at that,
Michele, since you hired him, how much was he paid?

MS. PECK: Who?

SENATOR ORIE: Mr. Alberts.

MR. ESPRAGUE: Excuse me, let me just go back to your
guestion. This individual that you're just talking about--

SENATOR ORIE: Um-hum.

MER. SPRAGUE: --ig the only other person
unlegss you include the accountant.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. And Mg. Peck--

MR. SPRAGUE: 2And the bookkesper, I'm told. I really
don't pay attention to some of those details like that.

SENATOR ORIE: Ms. Peck, how much was Mr. Alberts

paid, and what was his job respeonsibilities, since vou hired
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him? And that's it.

MS. PECK: Well, since Mr. Sprague knew that I would
not be there on a full-time basisg, I hired Mr. Corky Alberts to
ccme in when I wasn't there. His salary is $50,000 a year.

SENATOR ORIE: And his jok dutilesg?

MS. PECK: Mr. Alberts would answer the phones; he
would take care of any day-to-day things that I wasn't there to
handle until I got there.

SENATCR CRIE: Thank you, Madam Chairman. I'll wait
for the second round.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Questions from
Representative O'Brien.

REPRESENTATIVE Q'BRIEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Sprague, let me start off by saying in public
something that I've said to you in private. Haill to the wvictor
valiant. We've tussled. We'wve had contrary opinions. Your
projectts in the air. Congratulations.

MR. SPRAGUE: Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE O'BRIEN: Now, I have one sgimple
gquestion. I mean, obvicusly, vyour lawyering is second to none.
You're a powerful and influential man in this Commonwealth.
You're--

MR. SPRAGUE: Flattery will get you nowhere. Ggc
ahead.

REPRESENTATIVE O'BRIEN: It will gst me everywhere,
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and you know it, Dick. You're on the Supreme Court -- or were
cn the Supreme Court Disciplinary Board; which oversees
lckbbyists. Why not? Why wouldn't you register? We'wve just
spent approximately two hours, plus the prep time, in this. I
don't understand, for a lousy hundred bucks, why wouldn't you?
MR. SPRAGUE: Well, I'1l1l tell you. As T said, we are
in the process of lcooking for a lobbyist. And whether it's
just the way in which I approach things, I thought we will
register as scon as we hire a lobbyist, and that's what my
intent is, and that's where we are. You know, if we had been
more involved in lobbying than these three e-mails and beén
doing it, surely, we would have registered. But we weren't.
And T'll tell vou one other thing. It was not really
our intent to get involved in the lobbying. We were a trade
assocliation. You know why those three e-mails went out? And
that's the only thing we did, and I say it's lobbying, but it
comes under the exemption. I saw -- and this is me -- I saw in
this legislature, which you are all a part of, the fighting
going on between the wvarious factions. And T gaw the fight
going on -- shall that table game tax be what I thought was an
absurd amcunt, 30-scme percent, which if you're trying to put
in table games, maybke you don't want table games, but then just
say so. Don't put in a tax that's absurd. I saw that. And
then I saw all the fighting, and then I saw the Governcor in

here, and he was making his terms.

Senate of Pennsvylvania




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

83

And I really decided at that point, even though we're
not a lobbying firm, we are going to -- and I did become aware,
and I think I saw the Chairwoman having a hearing, I'm not that
good on names, but I saw on PCN, Chairwoman Earll, with some
economic group making reports, and I heard them testifying that
a certain percentage is what ought to be the tax for takle
games to be econcmical and profitable for -- remember, the
Commonwealth, vour Commonwealth is a partner with us. And I
saw this group telling what was the best thing econcmically for
Pennsylvania. And when I saw that, I decided, God, we're going
to send cut gomething to all the legislators urging them, and
that's what our e-mail is really what that economic group was
pressing to Chairwoman Earll at those hearings that T saw. So
I jumped intc that.

The only other thing that I jumped into was I felt
that this legislature, when they passed the criginal bhill, had
said there would only be two resorts. And all of a sudden, I
see monkeying with that. And I frankly had my own suspicions
as to what was the reason that was going on for the monkeying,
and why was there, all of a sudden, this push for more resorts.
And I have my own belief about that, which I'm sure
Representative Schreder is fully in accord with. But I said
encugh's enough. 2And sc for that area, I jumped in.

I wasn't thinking this is now making me a lobbyist.

But we're interviewing, and when we'wve got them, we will
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register.

REPRESENTATIVE O'BRIEN: Well, hearing that you and
Chairman Schroder are on the same page on an issue, obviously,
I have nothing further. Thank vou.

I would like to thank the Chair.

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, thank vyou.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Attorney Sprague, just to follow up
on that line of questioning for a moment. As I connect these
dots, and feel free toc correct me if I'm wrong, but we have a
very incestuous group of people who are involved, on a variety
of different levels, in a significant percentage of thig gaming
market in Pennsylvania. We have the Casino Association, of
which you are legal counsel, vou're board of directors, and
you're a part owner of SugarHouse, which is a member cof the
association. We have two other members of the association, Mt.
Airy and the Rivers. Sprague and Sprague, vyour law firm,
represents Mt. Airy, as well as SugarHouse. Your general
counsel to SugarHouse represents the Rivers. We have a couple
other law firyms that do piecework for these membher
organizations of your assocciation. All three of your member
organizations have the same lobbyist, Wojdak and Associates. I
mean, clearly, there's a group of you who have -- wear very
many different hats in three different casinos, as well as the
association. In additicn fto that, you bring on some very high,

powerful people -- Chief Justice Zappala -- and then you kind
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of git there and wonder why we are concerned about whether
you're following the law or not. And even if we agrese that the
letter of the law does not reguire rvegistration, it seems to me
that you're violating the spirit of the law, because we have
worked very hard, some of us, to make sure that this industry
has credibility in Pennsylvania, and so that the usual taint
and suspicion that is asgsociated with this industry could be
avoided in Pennsylvania, and by your refugal or cutesiness with
not registering, you make it seem suspicious, even 1f it's not
suspiciousg.

Then I lock at your articles of incorporation, and
your articles of incorpeoration for the association does say
that you are going to "represgent the industry before the
Legislature and elected and appeointed officials in addressing
issues and related matters of importance te the industry
generally." Well, clearly, whatever we're legislating involves
issues of importance to the industry. So excuse some of us if
we're very chagrined by your lack of disclosure, whether it's
regquired technically by the law or not. By not registering,
you look like you're hiding something, and that affects all of
us in this legislature, particularly those of us whe have tried
to be fair to a new industry.

So, again, why wouldn't you just register? What is
the hig deal?

MR. SPRAGUE: 1It's no big deal. Let me make that
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clear. It's just that you have a point of view, if you don't
have to, why don't you lean over and do 1t? Maybe I've heen a
lawyer too long for you. I believe in - the law says you
register if certain things cccur. That's what I do. I den't
just do things because gomebody else thinks I should do it.

But you ralse other issgues, I think, there, and I
think you intertwine them. One, you raise the issue of wearing
many hats. And you raise the issue of interrelationships,
having the same lobbyist here and there. And that ig -- I'm
not gquarreling with that, and if your hearing got nothing to do
with the Lobbying Act but has to do with whether or not one
person can wear, in the gaming industry today, different hats,
that's an issue.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Don't misunderstand me. T don't
think any of that's illegal, and I congratulate all of you who
have figured out a way to get your fingers in all of that.
Good for you. But my point is that because you have your
fingers in all of that, you certainly do at least make the
appearance of influencing that. 2And you have relationships.
You're all shrewd political operators. You have been for
years. You have relationships in the executive branch as well
as the legislature. So why -- if you don't have anything to
hide about your involvement in any of this -- why don't vyou
just register?

MR. SPRAGUE: You know, it's very nice to say, 1f you
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have nothing to hide. You know, it's great to say, we'll be
for motherhood and against sin. We're dealing with what the
law ig, and I have made it c¢lear that under the law, we have
done absclutely ncthing wrong. Now, let me say this. I got a
great respect for vou. If you had called me on the phone, and
my good friend Representative Q'Brien had called me on the
phone, and said, hey, Sprague, vou know, 1 don't think your
Casino Association's violated anything, but you know, we feel
uncomfortable about vou. Do me a favor, register. I°'d have
registered.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Ch, please. That's not my
responsibility to make sure you're registered, as nice as that
suggestion is. What I'm saying is that considering the nature
of this industry and considering all of the skepticism and all
of the aura of the indugtry, why wouldn't vou bend over
backwards so that none of us would be in this position of
having to have a public hearing where you're being
cross-examined on even maybe some irrelevant information? You
could have avoided all of it.

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, vyou know, my response to that isg,
as I said with Representative Santoni, we offered to come in,
and everything I've said to you now, I was willing to say to
nim, I was willing to say to you.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: That's nice, but we're not the only

ones paying attention. We have a whole Commenwesalth out there
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of a variety of different constituencies that are paying
attention.

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, vou've taken that whole
Commonwealth, and you're facing this issue. And I suggesgt to
you -- I wasn't facetioug when I gaid earlier -- what is more
open than what we have done? When yvou're talking about
lobbying, everyone here -- and let's be very blunt about it,
you all know, Representative C'Brien knows, gsomehow in your
gaming bill, there was snuck through certain provigiong that a
lot of you didn't know about until it was too late to act upcn.
And how did that happen? Because lobbyists dealt with some of
your Members, not in an open mailing to everybody, but meeting
with them privately.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Well, I would suggest it wasn't only
lobbyists that were having private meetings and private
conversations,

ME. SPRAGUE: Pardon?

CHAIRMAN EARLL: I would suggest it wasn't just
registered lcbbyists having those conversations.

MR. SPRAGUE: Whoever it was, but I'm suggesting to
vou, if I was in your position, I'd take a lock at that rather
than this Mickey Mouse thing.

CHATIRMAN EARLL: Repregentative Santoni.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI : I'm going to --

Repregentative O'Brien wants to make one second comment, and
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then I'm going to go to Representative Vereb.

REPRESENTATIVE O'BRIEN: Mr. Sprague, pleage
register.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Representative Vereb,

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Thank vyou, Mr. Chalrman.

MR. SPRAGUE: I may co that for vou.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Thank you, Chairmen,
respective Chairmen.

Mr. Sprague, I'm going to go back and forth with vou,
if you don't mind. It's a great honcer to have you here to
testify before us, and I echo the sentiments of my good friend
and colleague, Representative O'Brien, in terms of your stature
in the court and the system that we so depend upon day to day.

MER. SPRAGUR: Thank vyou.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: You nentioned vou had a
meeting with a number of Representativeszs and Senators, and I
might have missed a date or approximate date. When did vou go
and introduce yourself to the Members that you had listed? aAnd
I realize it may ke a ccocuple of days. Just an approximate
timeline.

MR. SPRAGUE: I'm going to have to estimate the
dates. I have an appointment book in my office, and if vyou
really want the dates, I could get them from my appcointment
bock, and I'1l mail them to you, if you want. T would estimate

they were in 2008, maybe going into 2009.
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REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Ycu mentioned the names, and
yvou had said you wanted to introduce vyourself. You did not
mention my leader, Repregentative Sam Smith. Now, either you
like Groundhog Day, or you know each other from some other way.
Is there a reascn you wouldn't have gone to my Leader?

MR. SPRAGUE: No, there's no reason. As a matter of

fact, what my instructions to Mr. Hardy were, I really wanted

to go ultimately and meet with -- I wanted to meet with every
legisliator that was in coffice. I never got to do it. But
there was no cutting anybody off. It was Just time for --

limitations.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREEB: And because we're a couple
months off on the timeline, do you remember if you met with
Senator Fumo for purposes that yvou met with these other
Members?

MR. SPRAGUE: Uh, well, you raise a very interesting
gquestion there. 1 had cbviously -- at one time, I represented
Senator Fumc, so obvicusly, I had many meetings with Senator
Fumo. But there came a time in -- what was the year?

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: In an effort of time, you can
get back to the committee, if it's ckay with the Chairs. If we
don't kncow the dates and times, you could certainly get back to
us, Mr. Sprague.

ME. SPRAGUE: There came a time in 2008 where wmy

relationship with Senator Fumo terminated, and from then on, I
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have never talked to him again, other than to appear against
him in court.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Thank vou. And vou =saild the
purpose of thegse meetings was to go introduce yourself to thege
particular Members of -- some leadership, some not leadership.

MR. SPRAGUE: And to identify ocur Casino Association
to them.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Would you be suggesting, then,
that you would not have known former Speaker Perzel when vyou
would have gone tCo have met with him?

MR. SPRAGUE: T did know Perzel from previously.

REPRESENTATIVE VERER: Okay. Justice Zappala, thank
vou for your service to the court, and I'm sure you yourself
are appalled at some of the investigations that are going on
and just how much of a mockery it's made and how much we are
trying to work to make our operations, both in the Senate and
the House, a little more transparent. And we are really trying
to do the right thing, regardless of how minute pecple may
think this issue is. Thege investigations are a far cry from
the mopery with intent to gawk charges that we used to
inginuate on the minor summary charges in police work, Justice.

But moving on to your post-Justice career here, vyou
know, you've said yvour role, vou've said you'wve been attending
meetings, vou've galid your salary. I won't go back through

that, but let me just ask you this: What do you have to show
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for itre

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Pardon, gir?

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: What do you have to show for
everything you have done for this group?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: In what respect? I don't
understand the gquestion.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: With vyour salary--

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: What has it brought to me?

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: With vour -- I'll try to
rephrase it -- with your salary and your efforts and everything
that you have done, what hasg, what do you have to show for it
in terms of what is the end product of vour salary and your
efforte in all of those meetings that you obviously can't
discleose, but what ig the end product of what you'wve done?

MER. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Well, avain, the end product
has not yet been achieved. &And as I said te vou, the only
reascn I became involved is because I thought that it was
something which was novel and something which had not been
done, and that is the housing of the stand-alone casinos,
tocgether with the other part of the gaming industry, under one
roof. Unfortunately, when I became involved initially, there
was all this litigation, there was all confusion, and that wasg
almost an impossibility. Can I now pull it back together
again? I don't know, Mr. Representative. I have no idea.

Would I love to try and dc it? The answer is yes.
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So what have I accomplished by it? Right now,
there's three -- let's cee, we have three repregentations,
we're trying toc see 1f we can maybe get a couple more and go on
with this theory that you can speak with one voice, which is
permeated throughcut the Commenwealth, which has sense on what
ig achieving. That's all.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: One volce to what audience?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: To all audiences. In other
words, an audience that whether you're in the banking industry
or whether you're in the health industry or whether vou're in
the pharmaceutical, that vyou can speak as one voice
representing that group. And that's a pretty tough thing to
do.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Okay, sc also, the long-term
goal, as Mr. Sprague has said, you're working on it currently,
but it's alsc a long-term goal to register this group as a
lobbyist -- as a lobkbying group?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: That's their choice to make,
sir. I'm not part of the directors. Whatever they decide to
do i1s fine with me.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Ckay. Although he said it,
you're involved. Has the mission or goal been to ultimately
register -~ I'm asking you -- has it been the goal of this
group to register as a lobbying firm or a lobbyist?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Well, Mr. Representative, I
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can't answer that guestion. I'm not on the beoard of directors.
I'm not there making those policy decisions. I'm only a
resource perscn when they have other issues to raise. Whether
they do or not has ne bearing, as far as I'm concerned.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Okay, but vyvou are the
chairman, correct?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Am I the chairman? I don't
know, am I chairman?

MR. SPRAGUE: Yes.

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Yes. Okay. I guess, vyes.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Thank vyvou, Mr. Sprague.

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: I guess, ves. But a chairman
without a portfolioc.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Then what is -- and,
obviously, we're just trying to figure this ocut. TIt's a lot to
abgsork. What is the role of the chair?

MR, JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Well, again, you kxnow, I wasn't
sure 1f I wasg the chair. But I'm assuming the role of the
chair is to follow through with the policies which were
established by its members -- and, again, all the policies conme
through the three casinos, through Mr. Sprague -- and try and
carry out those policies. And one of the policies is having
everything under one roof, if possible. If possible.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Thank you, Justice.

Ms. DeNaples, vou'wve been sitting there very
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patiently all morning, and I just -- very brief guestions. Did
vou attend, there was a meeting Marxrch 12 of '07 at the
Harrisburg Hilton. That meeting was mentioned by Mr. Sprague.
Do you know 1f yourself or -- I'm not sure of the timeline, if
your father or somecne directly that works directly with Mt.
Airy was at that meeting? It was regarding this.

MS. DeNAPLES: Ves, I was there. I attended.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: You attended. Can veou tell
me, walking out of that hotel, what vyour impression was of the
future of this association?

MS. DeNAPLES: I think, after that meeting, vou
couldn't take anything, because it was just the initiation of
the awarenegs of the meeting. And then it ended up being a lot
of disagreements and agreements about other things that were
happening in the casino industry.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Can you menticn scme cf the
disagreementg?

MS. DeNAPLES: They started -- like smoking. I mean,
they started to bring up some issues that they had problems
with, so.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: More policy issues?

MS. DeNAPLES: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Do you recall any
digagreements over lobbying?

MS. DeNAPLES: It was not discussed, to my knowledge.
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REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Lokbying was not discussed in
that meeting?

MS. DeNAPLES: I don't -- I de not recall that.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREE: Lobbying in the future part of
that conversation at all?

MS. DeNAPLES: I'm gorry, sir?

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Was the future of vyour
organization to lobby, was that a discussicn?

MS. DeNAPLES: I do neot believe it got that far. I
mean, this was a while ago. There was other things happening
in Harrisburg. I cannot recall the exact details of the
meeting, but I don't -- do not recall it got to that detail.

REPRESENTATIVE VERER: Were there any meetings
subsequent to that, that you attended, regarding this before
the formulation of the association®

MS. DeNAPLES: I do not remewmber.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREE: Okay. Did you attend any
board meetings in which wmembers were appointed to the board or
chairs or--

MS. DeNAPLES: No.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREEB: No? Thank you.

Mr. Sprague, I just want to talk -- I'll try to be as
quick as I can -- about a little bit about the association. I
just want to kind of summarize, and ycou can correct me if I'm

wrong. The idea of the association was your idea?
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MR. SFRAGUE: Yes.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: How did you approach the
startup of it, the running of it, to get started?

MR. SPRAGUE: I told Mr. Hardy here to get a hold of
the principals of each cne of the racincs and each cne of the
stand-alones and ask them 1f they would be interegted in
attending a meeting that I would arrange for here in Harrisburg
to discuss forming an association, and he followed through and
set up and got a hold of everybody, and they attended the
meeting.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Ckay. When desgcribing the
purpose of the association to the potential members, sither
before the meetings that we had talked about, or, yvou know,
during those meetings that we've talked about, did vou ever
advigse anyone that the purpose of the association would be to
lobby the Pennsylvania State government on behalf of the gaming
industry in the Commonwealth?

MR. SPRAGUE: I did discuss with the whole group
there that I thought that eventually, in forming an
asscciation, if we could speak as one voice, we could then be
effective in lobbying with the legislature, ultimately, on many

issues, such as the high tax rate, asg gomething to consider,

and issues cof that nature. So the answer to your guestion is
ves., It was an area of disagreement, by the way, but I raised
itc.

Senate of Pennsylvania




10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

28

REPRESENTATIVE VERER: I can imagine vyour
disagreement was vocal, for sure.

MR. SPRAGUE: Yesg.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: S0 thig wasg at the sgame
meeting that I was just asking Ms. DeNaples about, or do I have
a different meeting?

MR. SPRAGUE: No, I think it was the gsame meeting.
This was in March 2007.

REPRESENTATIVE VERERB: So you thought the central
effort and central fight of this group, to lobby something like
the tax issue, would be an effective purpose for the group
long-texrm?

MR. SPRAGUE: Long-term, absolutely.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Did you advise any member or
anyone else that you, the association director, association
staff, or anyone else asgocilated with or working con behalf of
your organization would be lobbying on their behalf? Sounds
like you wrote that guestion, Mr. Sprague.

MR. SPRAGUE: I didn't hear the last part.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: It's a very worded guestion.

I guess my purpose is, were any of the people that I mentioned,
were they told that they would be working on behalf of your
organization to be lobbying on their behalf?

MR. SPRAGUE: The original idea was to have this as a

trade association, and then we would have each of the entities
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do lobbying. There wasn't any thought of taking away the
lobbyists from each of the entities, but having a trade
agsocliation to then have each of the groups be able to lobby
for what we jointly agreed upon, and that's one of the areas
that fell apart, bscause there was a lot of disagreements as to
the entities working jointly.

REPRESENTATIVE VERERB: Thank you. And actually, this
is obvicusly to you, but 1f anyone else hag background cn this,
it would be great, at the table there. Is anyone aware of any
other statewide association that advocates in Harrisburg on
behalf of issues important to its members that doesn't consider
such advocacy to be lobbying and therefore follow all the laws,
rules, and regulaticns pertaining to lobbying Pennsylvania
State government?

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, that's just, again, that, vou
know, that's the kind cof broad guestion against--

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: I'll rephrase it. Is there
another group like yours, Mr. Sprague, that yvou're aware of?

MR. SPRAGUE: I don't study other groups in
Pennsylvania. I'm sure -- but if you're saying that they're
lobbying in violation of the Lobbying Act, that's one thing.
Don't -- I have never said these three e-mails were not
lobbying. They are. But under ocur law, they are not violative
of the Lobbying Act. That's all I've gaild. So don't ask me a

gquestion about other groups, because it depends on what they're
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doing.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: And just, I'm trying to cut
out all the guestions you've already answered, becausze you
certainly have answered a lot. I want to talk about the
lawsulit and how Mr. DePaul came to the conclusion, or who
golicited him -- T don't want tc use -- how about recruit Mr.
DePaul te file the suit involving campaign contributions. What
was your role in that, at zll?

ME. SPRAGUE: If you know Mr. DePaul, nobody recruits
him, first. Mr. DePaul felt very strongly about the
prchibition on pclitical activity, and as a matter of fact, I
don't know how much you know in termg of the background here,
When Mr. DePaul applied for a gaming license -- and under the
law, once yeu're an applicant, you are prohibited from
political activity for anybody running for any office, by the
way. Mr. DePaul went and made political contributions even
after he was an applicant. He did not realize that that law
applied to an applicant. He thought the law applied only once
you got a license. When he found ocut that it applied to an
applicant, he immediately wrote to all the people he had made
contributions and had them refund his money.

He nonethelesg was fined by the Gaming Beoard
$100,000, and his casino, Foxwoods, was fined, I believe,
$100,000. And he paid that fine on his own. But he thought

this law was unconstitutional. No one had to urge him. He's
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lived his whole life as a businessman making political
contributions to both parties. And he felt very strongly that
this law wasg violative of his rights, and he wanted the first
opportunity te sue, and he did sue. I'm sure nobody scolicited
him at all, and he has now got a suit against the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania that's in the Commonwealth Court to get that
$100,000 fine back.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Thank you, Mr. Sprague. Just
one guick fecllow-up to that. I am familiar with Mr. DePaul. I
don't really know him personally. I also realize that the
$100,000 that it costs to make that fight in court wasn't going
to set anyone back too far. Why would you have not solicited
the remainder of the industry in Pennsylvania to help pay that
5100,0007 Why did the three members of this association feel
it so important to reimburse him?

MR. SPRAGUE: Because, frankly, while I'm still
trying teday, I have not getten cthers in the gaming industry
tc work with us. Some of them feel, let you do 1t, and why
should I have to join you? Others feel that they have their
own goalse to go con. 8o I've given up trving to get them on a
broad base. Frankly, what I'm trying to do now is inch my way.
Get one to join and then another one. I want to conguer
Europe, but I don't want tc jump right to Berlin., I want to
start at the beaches.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Who actually did the check go
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to? Who was the reimbursement written out to?

MR. SPRAGUE: T don't know. It wasg written to Peter
DePaul.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREBR: Okay.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Senator Wozniak.

SENATOR WOZNIAK: Thank you, Madam Chairman. I
apologize for my communicator. I got it yesterday, and I have
no bloody clue how it works.

Counselor; Counselor; nonpracticing Counselor;
Counselor; Chief Justice; Ms. DeNaples, I don't know 1f vyou're
a Counselor or not; Counsgelor; we'wve been here almost three
houreg, and boy, they say that lawyers are paid by the word,
then everybody has done pretty well here. I just want to
preface thig that I have no interest in ingquisitions, and I'm
glad that we do not come up with every trade association in
front of us. But gaming is sexy by its cown interests. 1 never
heard the radio ads. I don't know who Mr. DePaul is. I don't
have a horse in the race. I don't have a casino. I wigh I
did. You people are creating hundreds of thousands of jobs and
hundredg of millions of dollarg in revenues to the State and in
those employees.

Obviougly, there's been three hours of diligcugsion
about, you sheould've did this, you shouldve did that, you
stepped into the gray area. I'm asking you, plezse register.

Chief Justice, 1'm going to make the assumption that
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you came on board because you were a Chief Justice. You're
experienced in the law, you know the four corners of
Penngylvania, and I doubt very much that anybody that's going
to be in the casino industry is geing to make any kind of foul
play or trxip up when all eyesg, including, I see, the reporters
out here, because they sure want to find every little chink in
the armor. I think you'wve done an excellent job tcday
expressing yourself.

I would never want to go against you, Counselor
Sprague. You are a very articulate individual. I know thes
feint within the feint within the feint that's going on here,
but I appreciate that you came out here today and expressed
yourself. I den't know March 13, 2008, September 21, 2010. I
don't really care. Personally, I think this is much ado about
nething, and I want toe put that on the record.

Thank you, Madam Chairman.

MR. SPRAGUE: Thank you. May I make a comment, then?
If -~ and this is the lawyer in me -- if it isg understood there
is no suggesticn that we did anything wrong by not having
registered up tc thig moment, even though we have not yet hired
our lobbyist, we will register. Now, that's my proposal. Rut
I don't want any suggestion, oh, you're now going to register
becausge in szome way he's sgaying he did something wrong, because
if that's it, our linchpin is we did nothing wrong.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: We have, there's actually
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four or five more House Members, and the Senator and I agres
that we want teo conclude the hearing by noon, so I would
respectiully, respectfully ask both pecople posging guesticons and
those answering guestions to be as brief as pogsible. We would
really appreciate it.

Next questioner is Representative Barbin,

REPRESENTATIVE BARBIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

And thank you, Mr. Sprague, Chief Justice Zappalsa,
and all the members that have provided testimony under oath,
although I ncte that the =zame oath wasn't provided or requested
by the prior panel of testifiers. 1I'd algo note today that the
only issue that has any merit at all appears to be the guesticn
as to whether a trade association should, upon formation, be
reguired under our State lobbying law to register as a
lobbyist.

Mr. Sprague, when you formed the trade association,
was the Pennsylvania Casino Associlation regquired as a trade
asscciaticn to register as a lobbyist?

MR. SPRAGUE: Absclutely not.

REFPRESENTATIVE BARBIN: Okay. Then I'll make my
comments very short. The bottom line is that the law did not
require you to. The bottom line 1s there ig a provigion that
Mr. Schreder, or Representative Schroder, pointed out that says
that if a trade agsociation ig ewbarked in an =ducation action

but does not take or does not request follow-up action by the
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public or a movement to persuade an individual legislator,
that's not lobbying. There's been no lobbying that's gone on
here today. No discussion has gone even close to that
particular isgsue. And unless we're prepared, either Senate or
House, teo amend the lobbying law today and say that
registration is immediately required of all trade associationg,
then this hearing should he over.

And I would say this just for my own responsibility
as a representative of the pecple of Pennsylvania. I was lucky
encugh to be a law clerk for Chief Justice Henry O'Brien. And
when he left cffice, he served as counsel for Reed, 8mith, Shaw
and McClay, and he was paid a galary probakly cloge to what
Justice Zappala was, but that was because he wasg a tremendous
personal lawyer, and he had every right to make a sgalary ag a
former member of a public body. There is nothing wrong with
the salary 1f you are worth the salary, and Chisf Justice
Zappala, in any industry group, i1s worth that salary. So any
insinuation to the contrary bespeaks badly on our whole
institution, and I'm not going to participate in any more
hearings that are called for this type of purpose.

Thank vyou, Mr. Chairman.

CHATRMAN EARLL: 1I'll respond to that. The purpose
of the hearing was to get some facts on the record so that we
could make a determinaticn as to what the casino industry, or

the Casino Association, was up to -- 1t wasg as simple as that
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-- instead of trying to glean information from the newspapers,
which we would all agree is probably not a good thing to do.
That is the scle purpose of the hearing.

Senator Ferlo. Oh, I'm sorry, I gusss he didn't want
to walt any longer.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Representative Clymer.

REPRESENTATIVE CLYMER: Thank you, Myr. Chairman, and
welcome, ladies and gentlemen, to this hearing. I'll try to be
very brief.

October of 2008, PCA issueg a release including
Foxwoocds about pending legislation. After PCA retracts
Foxwoods as part of the group, Cozen begins lobbying on
Foxwoods' behalf. Has there been any communication between
Cozen and PCA? And is he gtill counsel to the association?

MR. SPRAGUE: The answer is there has been no
communication between PCA and Cozen, and Cozen is not counsel
to the association. The only part where Cozen was counsel to
the asssociation was in incorporating it, pericd.

REPRESENTATIVE CLYMER: Thank you. And two other
gquestions, briefly. We all know that the casino proponsnts
pushed very hard to legalize slot machines and table gamessg here
in Pennsvlvania. Now, the same pesople who were involved are
part of the Pennsylvania Casinoc Association. So if T propose
legislation to increase the costs for the table games

license--we all recognize $16.5 million ig a giveaway, so I'm
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going to increase it--where is the trade -- where will be the
Pennsylvania Casginc Agsociation ag a trade associatien? Where
will vou be on that issue?

MR. SPRAGUE: If there's an effort to increase the
tax or the license fee, my position, and I believe I, ag you
gathered, speak for the association, will be to oppose it.

REPRESENTATIVE CLYMER: And you'll do that through
education or how, as an agsociation?

MR. SPRAGUE: I'll scrt of have to get the lay of the
land. I weculd think right now, your chances of getting this
legislature to change the license fee or the tax are like nil.
So I don't think I'm going to have to do anything.

REPRESENTATIVE CLYMER: All right. Well, we're going
to have a budgst c¢risis coming up, and of course, we nzed the
additional mcney. S0 we want to be reasonable and fair.

All right, I'll go to another guestion. The smoking
issue has been brought up, smoking in the casinos. Now, the

Pennsylvania law prchibits swmoking in all public places, and of

course, the casinos were to be included. You know, they were
to be no gsmcking in casinos. Gusss what? Somehow, the casinos
were exempted. You can now smcke in certain parts of the

casino, the places where the gambling is done the most. Now,
Mr. Sprague, sir, you are director, you are counsel, and you
are owner. Now, you know the reason that the casincs want the

smoking i1s because it brings in more revenue.
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So, there's proposals out there to make the -- to
prohibit thig, you know, somehow prcohibit smoking in the
casinos, and you yourself said that thisg is an issue that the
Penngylvania Casino Association will disgcusgs. What's there to
discuss? It loocks like it's a done deal. TIt's not going to
happen, because of the reasons T just articulated.

MR. SPRAGUE: The only area I was talking about on
smoking was that in some talks, as I sgaid, particularly with
Parx, there's a gquestion as to, on table games themselves,
should the casinos -- you know, they can place the table gamesg
where they want. Should they try to place them where there is
no smeoking, so that somebody is not, let's say, at a poker
table and somebody else goes to light up. I don't know the
answer to it. All I'm saying is this is an aresa that we're
discussing. And that's the purpose of a trade association - to
talk about these things. So I don't have an answer for you on
that.

REPRESENTATIVE CLYMER: And my f£inal comment, and
there's no answer to it, and that is, you had mentioned about
Foxwoods and SugarHouse being at a disadvantage because the
reople could raise money. Well, ladieg and gentlemen, those
two licenses for Philadelphia were put in there behind the
closed doocrs. The people of Philadelphia really never had an
opportunity to voice their copinions. So they're the onesg that

are the disadvantaged. They're the result of this peclitical
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politics that tock place.

And with that, I conclude my remarks. Thank you.

MR. SPRAGUE: Thank vyou, sgir.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I
think.

Representative Caltagirone.

REPRESENTATIVE CALTAGIRONE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

For the record, and for the benefit of the Members
here, I just want to share with you, you know, I think I'm
probably the senior Member here in this body, House or Senate -
34 vyears. I helped to craft the legiglation, and I worked very
closely with the Chief Justice on the court computerization,
which is statewide. His management and business skills were
second te none. And he brought to the table a lot of respect
and ingenuity in crafting the system that we have and use
today. And I want to let you all know that he's an excellent
person, he has an impeccable reputation, and he’'s worked very,
very hard in establishing, I think, especially with the court
gaygtem and the computerization, something that we can all be
very proud cf. And I just want to get that on the reccrd.
Thanlt vyou.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONT: Thank you.

Representative Swanger.

REPRESENTATIVE SWANGER: Thank vyou.

I'm looking at the job degscription for executive
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director of your association, and I'll be very brief here. I'm
just going to pick out a few of the duties and
responsibilities. "Fosters an environment that facilitates
broad support for Pennsylvania's gaming industry....Develops
and maintains relationships with key stakeholders to assist
them in creating an environment in which the gaming industry
can thrive in Pennsylvania....Acts as a knowledgeable advocate
in the public gphere for the gaming industry... [and] Maintains
effective relationships with the Pennsgylvania General
Assembly."

Now, obviocusly, if your executive director is doing
his job, he is already performing these duties and
respongibilities. And I'll address my guestion to Counselor
Sprague. Is 1t my understanding that you feel that thesge
activities are not lobbying?

MR. SPRAGUE: No, I don't think they're lobbying.

REPRESENTATIVE SWANGER: Thank vyou.

CHAIRMAN EARIT,: I think we're on second round
follow-ups. Hag everybody has the opportunity to ask one
round?

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Representative Wansacz has a
question for the first round, and then very brief second round.

Jim.

REPRESENTATIVE WANSACZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Obvicusly, I think it's come cut here today that you

Senate of Pennsylvania




10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

24

25

111

guys are a trade organization, and a trade organization is not
registered -- ig not reguired to be registered, under law, asg
lobbying. I think that's become very, very clear. As I
mentioned earlier to Mr. Kauffman of the Common Cause is, if we
were to do that, we'd be really cutting off every organization
out there. I can tell you as a Representative, I'm sure every
Representative and Senator here at this table has met with a
trade crganization in their lifetime, because that's vour job,
is to go ahead and discuss what is important as an organization
to you. Just like the General Assembly - we could kind of be a
trade organization if we wanted because we have disagreements
all the time. I'm sure when you guys meet, ag Ms. DeNaples
said, you guys disagree. That happens. That's why you try to
come together and find common ground on what is lmportant to
grow the industzy.

Mr. Zappala, I think you'wve done a great job. I
mean, with steering this board, the industry is going to create
over 10,000 jobs, plus the thousands already created on through
the zlot machinesg, the millions of dollars in economic
development, the $25 million that cur volunteer fire companies
get, the hundreds cof millions more in taxes that we're going to
get 1in.

You know, I Just locked at the revenue numbers the
other day coming in from ocur Appropriations, and they said, vou

know what, we're going to be faced with a budget deficit again
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this year because our personal income tax is off, ocur sales tax
is off. Well, once we have 10,000 people to werk, I very hope
that the personal income tax is going to go up, the sales and
goods that pecple are buying are geing to go up. So that is
going to help the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. So I have no
problem with a trade organization meeting, talking about that,
because I think that is your right, just as any home
crganization, trade organization, just as the tavern industry,
just as the insurance industry, ijust as any other industry can
do it.

Also, what I would like to talk to you about is I
know a lot of pecple talk about the campaign centributions.
Well, I introduced an amendment onto the House flcor that many
Members voted as unconstituticonal when I tried to ban another
industry frem contributing to, and let me tell you, gaming is
important. But so is insurance. So ig healthcare. 8o is
utilities. These have effects on everyday people's lives. Why
are we -- why do we say to them, ch, you can contribute, but,
you know, gaming can't? Sc I'm pretty confident that when the
courts, 1f this is challenged and goesg in front of the courts,
that they're going to strike it down, just as Members of this
General Assembly said it was uncongtitutional.

Sc I just wanted to add my comments. Thank vou.

MR. SPRAGUE: Thank vou.

CHATRMAN EARLL: Attorney Sprague, when the radio
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advertigement ran, what market did that run in? How many days
did it run?

MR. SPRAGUE: May Mr. Smukler answer that?

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Please.

MR. SMUKLER: The radio ads ran in five media markets
acrogs Penngylvania. It ran for four days in all of thoze --
it ran for four days in those markets.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Do you have receipts for the buy
times?

MR. SMUKLER: I can get them.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Could you please submit those to me?

MR. SMUKLER: Sure.

CEAIRMAN EARLL: And I'm not trying to play a game of
gotcha here, because I really am trying to understand maybe
where our lobbying disclosure law needs to be amended or
tweaked, but, for example, Attorney Sprague, have you had any
conversgations pergonally with the Governor on any gaming
igsues?

MR. SPRAGUE: At any time?

CHAIRMAN EARLL: At any time.

MR. SPRAGUE: Yes.

CHATIRMAN EARLL: And your suggestion is that because
you weren't spending any money deing that--

MR. SPRAGUE: You didn't ask me what the convergation

was .
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CHAIRMAN EARLL: Were you compensated to carry
messages forward to the Governor?

MR. SPRAGUE: Pardon?

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Were you compensated to carry
messages forward to the Governor?

MR. SPRAGUE: The conversation was the other way.

The Governor called me.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Okay. How about with the Gaming
Control Board members?

MR. SPRAGUE: Have I had any conversation with any of
them? Other than when appearing in front of them at a hearing,
no.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: No private conversationg?

MR . SPRAGUE: HNone.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Okay, but just hypothetically, if
you did have a private conversation that you instigated with
the Governor, for example, are you suggesting that because --
and that you were actually talking to him about some issue of
the day relative to the industry -- you're sayving that the law,
in your copinion, the lobbying disgclosure law doesn't require a
registraticn for you to do that because you're not spending any
money in that effortr

ME. SPRAGUE: Well, it would depsnd how much time,
becauge I think it's in the alternative. It's not just one or

the other. If, for example, I was spending over 20 hours
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trying tc persuade the Governor in terms of suppeorting and
working on certain legislation, I think, absolutely, I am under
the Lebbying Act and have to register. But 1f 1t's lessg, then
no.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Legs than 20 hours?

MR. SPRAGUE: But, you know, let me say this. I'm
not a lobbyist in that sense. And to the suggestion, why not
pay the hundred deollars and register? If I was spending my
time, not 20 hoursg but 15, a significant amount of time with
the Governor, or with Representatives, trying to persuade you
to enact legislation, I wouldn't hold on to the technicalities
there. 1'd register.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Justice Zappala, I'll ask you the
same guestion. Have you had any conversations with any of your
brethren or ex-brethren on any level of the bench in regards to
the Casino Association's business?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Absolutely not.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: Thank you. How about on any gaming
igsue, not just Casino Assgociation related?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: Absoclutely not, and I think the
last conversation I had with Chief Justice Castille, it was
when he was swearing in Sallie Updyke Mundy. That's all I
know.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: But you weren't talking about gaming

during that swearing-in?
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MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: No, there was no need to talk

about gaming, Senator.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: And Senator Crie, you have follow-up

guestiong?

SENATOR ORIE: Yes.

CHAIRMAN EARLL: And again, we're going to keep the
follow-ups brief sc we can recess.

SENATOR ORIE: Ms. DeNaples, could you tell me how
much Mt. Alry paid in dues 1in 20077

MS. DeNAPLES: I believe it was 405.

SENATCR ORIE: 405. And could you tell me how much
vou paid in 20087

MS. DeNAPLES: It was just one payment.

SENATCR CRIE: And can you tell me -- one payment?

MS. DeNAPLES: The payment of 405.

SENATOR ORIE: For 20077 I'm talking about 2008.

MS. DeNAPLES: Tt was just one payment for the 2007.
No additional payments.

SENATOR ORIE: Qkay, and what about 20087

MS. DeNAPLES: No additional payments.

SENATOR ORIE: So when they have revenues coming in
in 2007, Mr. Sprague, as 5800,000, and 2008, $425,000, where
did that money -- who all contributed--

MR. SPRAGUE: 1In that vyear, it would have been the

payment hy Mt. Airy and the payment by SugarHouse.
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SENATCR ORIE: Qkay, and that would have been in
2007. What about 2008, where 1t has listed $425,000. Who
would have contributed to that?

MR. SPRAGUE: I believe that was a payment by Rivers,
which came in then.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. And when you look at that $1.2
million over a two-year period, and you're not lobbying, vyou
have emplcyees with no contracts, neither one of them that can
degcribe their job descripticens or ever saw their job
degcripticons, even though you've provided them to us, it leaves
the question is, what are you paying $1.2 million for to get
one voice when you haven't even reached that goal vyet?

MR. SPRAGUE: Recause we're working on it, and we're
trying te achieve it, and as you will see, Rivers has made one
payment; Mt. Airy, as you just heard, has made one payment,
geing back from the start of 2007; the only one that has paid
twice is my place, SugarHouse. 2And we are working, trying to
get thisg trade asscciation to be effective. And, you know, I
must gay, it picks up on what Representative Caltagircne said--

SENATOR ORIE: Mr. Sprague, I only have a limited
amcunt of time, sc I'm going to interject here.

MR. SPRAGUE: Okay.

SENATOR CRIE: In 200%, is that when you paid again?
2And how much did you pay, if you paid twice? How much is it

this year?
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MR. SPRAGUE: The last payment by SugarHouse was last
year? Last year or the year before, and that was $350,000.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay, so I guess my point is, when you
add that, that's 1.5, and that's what I'm gaying. That leaves
an impression of, if thig is just a trade association, that's a
lot of wmoney; ncboedy knows what their fob descripticns are,
nobady knowsg; there's no contractsg for any of thege
individuals. It leaves one to wonder what the purposs is,

MR. SPRAGUE: I believe you're making a speech.
That's not a question. And you have a copy of the job
description for executive director. You have a copy of the job
description for directeor of operations. We have just gone
through what we have done, and just to say, ncbody knows what
yvou're doing, you've just been listening to us for three hours.

SENATOR ORIE: Mr. Sprague, could you alsco answer for
me that -- you indicated that Cozen and O'Brien are the ones
that filed your articles of incorporation.

ME. SPRAGUE: Cozen and O'Conncr.

SENATOR ORIE: Correct. And then your migssgion
statement changes from the articles of incorporaticn, the
rider. When were those changes made, and why?

MR. SPRAGUE: I have no recollection.

SENATOR ORIE: 24nd the fact that the rider indicates,
"helping to represent the industry before the Legislature and

elected and appointed officials in addressing issues and
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related matters of importance to the industry generally, " that
deoesn't -~ I guess my question would be, your migsion
statement, this is more descriptive of lobbying, if vou ask me.

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, it may be. I really don't -- I'm
gurmiging, as I said. I really don't recall. It may be that
that wasg changed when the law was knocked ocut affecting
political contributicong. I don't know. I'm just guessing at
that.

SENATOR ORIE: Okay. Well, maybe vyou could get back
to me on that.

And my last question would be, when vyvou gave the
dutiegs of everybody on Decewmber 1st, is there a reascon that you
left out the duties of the chairman?

MR. SPRAGUE: I'm sorry, I didn't hear that guestion.

SENATOR ORIE: VYou did a letter on December 1st to
the Chairman of the House Gaming Committee, and in that letter,
you described everybody's duties, and when I asked Ms. Michele
Zappala Peck if she knew what her duties were, 1f she had seen
that, she had indicated no, and I wanted to ask you, why the
omission of the duties of the chairman?

MR. SPRAGUE: Well, the guestion that Representative
Santoni, 1if you looked at his question, the question, you see,
vour guestion ig a migleading question. His gquestion was,
guote, "What are the duties of the Association senior staff,

including its Exscutive Director?" And that's what I anawered.
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SENATOR ORIE: Are there dutileg that you -- because
in asking Mr. Zappala, and I think it was asked by
Representative Vereb and others, he didn't even knocw he was the
chairman. Are there specific duties for the chairman that you
can provide this committee?

MR. SPRAGUE: Yeah. Let me tell vyou. If it wasn't
for Chief Justice Zappala, I would--

SENATOR ORIE: Mr. Sprague, I'm just asking you, do
yvou have duties for the chairman?

MR. SPRAGUE: Yeah, I'm answering it.

SENATOR ORIE: Do you have them in written form like
vou did for executive director?

MR. SPRAGUE: No, I don't have them in written form,
but in trying teo get this trade assccliation yet with more
members, more effective, so we can speak as a common voice, the
fact that I have Chief Justice Zappala working with me, just in
all the things that Representative Caltagirone said, is what
gives me a voice. If you think those people give one hoot
about if it's Dick Sprague, nc. The fact that it's Dick
Sprague with Chief Justice Zappala, that is what is attractive
to them.

SENATOR ORIE: And what is -- for a trade
organization to have $1.6 million in revenues raises a red flag
as to what else and what the purpose of that asscciation is

for. That is our bottom line.
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MR. SPRAGUE: What do you think we're deing? You
make a statement like that, and you're just surmising, just
like you csaid at one point you never heard of us. 2&And so
because yvou never heard of us, what, that makes us some weirdo?
There is a lot of things you never heard of.

SENATOR CRIE: No, Mr. Sprague, when you're looking
at the money, and vou're looking at the nature of the gaming
industry, transparency is something that I've been pushing for
from day one, and that's all I'm putting on record with veou.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Fcllow-up from Chairman
Schroder.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
and I will bhe brief.

Mr. Sprague, earlier on, you suggested that had
Repregentative O'Brien or gomeone just made a friendly
suggestion to you, that in fact you might have registered the
PCA, you know, as a principal, asg a lobbyist organization. I
guess my question, then, 1s this: You know, this hearing was
called because of, vyvou know, a number of things, articlesg that
gtarted to appear in the newgpaper about the role of the BCA,
gquestions that were raised in those articles about, vou know,
lobbying or the extent of lobbying. Then you receive a letter
from Chairman Santoni railsing, vou know, direct guestiong about
the activities of PCA and whether or ncot the organization, in

fact, lobbied. So my question te you is, in light of that, did
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you go seek an advice, an opinion, from the State Ethics
Commission under Section 1308{(C) of the act to get the Ethics
Commissicn's determination as tc whether or not your
asscciaticon should lobby -- or, should register, axcuse me?

MR. SPRAGUE: Noc. I think I'm a better lawyer than
they are.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Well, I don't -- that's an
interesting statement. Does that show a certain disdain for
the Ethics Commission?

ME. SPRAGUE: No. It means that I can read the law,
I can read statutes, I can see what they say, and where it is
very clear what they say. I don't need to go to scmebody else
for their interpretation.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHERODER: But you're aware that had
yvou done go, and had you received a favorable advice to your
position, that vyou would have protection under the law, under
the act, by complying in goeod faith with that. So in light of
that, wouldn't a reascnable perscon in your positilon just sav,
eh, let me go get the advice of the Ethics Commission. We're
sure of our position. Once they affirm that, we'll have
protection under the law. All this will go away. There
wouldn't be any need for a hearing today.

MR. SPRAGUE: Representative Schroder, all my life, T
have never accepted just the easy way if what I thought I was

doing was right.
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REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCDER: Let me agk this: Has the
PCA or any individual, up to this point, received a notice of
noncompliance from the Ethics Commission?

ME. SPRAGUE: No.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: Ckay.

In closing, I Jjust wanted te, you know, make a couple
obgervaticong. There sszemg Lo be an effort by some Towards the
end of this hearing to state a conclusion, and I'm mostly
talking about members of this panel, and this is not
neceggarily directed at Mr. Sprague and the other individuals,
that a trade aggociation, you know, cannot lobky, and we
shouldn't even be talking about this because PCA is a trade
association. I believe that's an oversimplification and a
misreading cf the Lobbyist Disclosure Act.

As Mr. Sprague has pointed cut, there are triggers in
the act, and if an individual or organization goes beyond those
triggers, they are in fact reguired to register. And the
question before us today, and as Chairman Earll has adroitly
stated, 1it's tc get to thoge facts as to whether or not certain
activities occurred that would trigger it. And we may agree or
disagree, and some light has been shed on some of those
gquestions. But I just wanted to put that on the record. I
also think the--

MR. SPRAGUE: Representative Schroder, may I say

this? I totally agree. Being a trade association, as such,
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does not require you to register ag a lobbyist, but a trade
association can ¢o lobbying, which, if it does it in a certain
way, will reguire 1t to register.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRCODER: I think we were in complete
agreement, until perhaps the "in a certain way," only because I
don't know what you meant by that.

MR. SPRAGUE: I just meant that if you exceed or go
above what the exemption is.

REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER: I understand.

The other thing I would like to say, as to
suggestions that have been made that it is constitutiocnally
impermissible to prohibit campaign contributions on the part of
this particular industry in comparing it with amendments that
were offered to, you know, prohibit contributions from other
industries, I just suggest that everyone who has not done so
actually read the DePaul decision of the Supreme Court. In
fact, they made it quite clear that it was constitutionally
permissible, and it met the strict scrutiny test for free
gpeech to prohibit contributions from people in this industry.
Then, they veered down a different path, locking at the
difference between the legislative intent of the original
statute and what the statute actually did. And that's the
basis upon which that original prohibition was struck down. So
I would just advise everyone to read the DePaul decision. It

in fact is wvery enlightening.
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And Madam Chairman, I thank you for vyour time and the
hearing. Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: Follow-up from
Representative Vereb.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I guess my only question is, what would you do
different today, knowing all of the guestions that have arisen,
whether -- we're not suggesting you did right or wrong. What
would you do differently today? I'd actually like to ask the
chairman--he didn't even know he was chairman until he got here
today--so now that you know vyvou're the chairman, Justice, what
would you do differently today for the organization you head
up?

MR. JUSTICE ZAPPALA: I'm not the chairman.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: 0Oh, vou're not the chairman
now? He fired you that guick? I'm kidding.

MR. SPRAGUE: I'm the chairman of the board.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Ckay. And he's -- the Justice
is chair of--

MR. SPRAGUE: The association.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Of the assocciation.

MR. SPRAGUE: So 1is the guestion to me?

REPRESENTATIVE VERER: Actually, vyes.

MR. SPRAGUE: In one sense, [ would do nothing

different, but to the extent that I have seen what has appeared
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in the press to be what I call sort of some malicious,
defamatory publications, if T could have avoided that, Jjust
from that standpoint, my friend Representative O'Brien isg
right, pay the $100 and register and avoid it. It's costing me
a lot more than that $100 to be here, sgpending this time. And
I said earlier, if I believe I'm doing what's right, I don't
take the shortcut on it.

For myself, I'd probably stick to the same thing. I
am very offended and bothered by how this has been used to
attack and smear the Zappala family. If I could have avoided
that, I'd have paid the $100.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Well, I'd just make a comment
on that. Mr. Sprague, in all due respect, the fact that he's a
former Chief Justice, this is the only industry that I'm aware
of in Pennsylvania that has direct access to the Supreme Court
by any appellate issue, and they go right tco the Supreme Court.
I'm not aware of any other industry that has that. So, vyou
know, maykbe I'm wrong. But I didn't write this bill. You
know, so that brings this to a whole other level of discussion.
And as the Chairwoman said, you know, we're trying to find out
exactly what happened and what's going on here, and, you know,
that's the purpose of today's hearing. 8o I'm not making an
attack. I think it's a great honor to be able to have the
reverse, te be able to ask questions of a Justice. 1I've never

been in front of the Supreme Court.
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Let me just say this, though.

MR. SPRAGUE: I'm not suggesting that this committee
here hasg gaild or done anything improper. No, no.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: Okay.

MR. SPRAGUE: My comment was, as a result of things,
things have appeared in the press -- and I'm a great one for
suing the press -- that have been, I think, false and
defamatory of the Zappala family.

REPRESENTATIVE VEREB: I want to stick to my
commitment of time to the Chairperson and just ask you this:

Do you think that the association was helpful with the final
taxation that was put in this last pilece of legiglation? I
know that was one of the things that you were advocating for in
your megsage. Do you feel'your message worked, eilther directly
or gubliminally?

MR. SPRAGUE: I think -- and maybe I'm taking credit
for what I don't deserve -- I think that our e-mail, where we
suggested that to go and create another, a third resort, and
that we took that as violative of the previcus law and that we
could sue for the 350 million licensge fee, I think that was
heipful in having it stay, at least until the year 2017, of two
regortg. 1 don't think that our position in terms of the table
tax -- I think that was worked out by all of you, and I don't
think we meant two centg in that whole thing.

REPRESENTATIVE VERER: Okay. Thank you.
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And just a follow-up comment, Madam Chair, is, you
know, the one thing I've learned today is this agsociation
actually has done lesg gince its inception than the House of
Representatives has done on some of these gaming issues over
the last two Sessicns. And I got to tell you, I don't want to
hear from any lobbyists or any of the licensees ever again
about taxation with the mcney they're spending for your
association. My hope, honestly, 1s that -- you're a very
brilliant attorney. You're a former Chief Justice. Go
register, become the lobbying firm that everycone may think vou
do or not, and then we don't have any more hearings,
potentially, and we live happily every after. And when we do
revigit trade association legislation, Mr. Sprague, I would
hope you would accept an appointment with me so we could help
craft the language, since you have a great way of interpreting
it.

MR. SPRAGUE: I would love to, and 1'll repeat what I
gaid earlier ~- I don't think Repregentabive Q'Brien wag here
-- 1f it is agreed by this committee that there was no need for
us to have registered under the factsg, I will, even without our
vet getting a lobbyist, register and pay the $100. But I will
not do it if there's any suggestion that we were wrong in nct
having registered.

CHEAIRMAN EARLL: You are wily, Mr. Sprague. I don't

think you're geing to get a consensus opinion out of this
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committee whether you were wrong or not, =o the burden is on
you to choose to register or not, regardless of what we think
about your prior activity.

I would like to just, in c¢losing, say that I do
appreciate evervene's time. We have heard a lot of information
this morning, some of it relevant, some of it not. We're going
to take some time -- at least speaking for myself and my
staff -- we're going to take scme time and digest what we'wve
heard. But I think going [orward, you clearly now understand
the concerns. So, you know, yvour course of action is up to
vou, but T do appreciate your testimony this morning.

MR. SPRAGUE: Thank vou.

REPRESENTATIVE SANTONI: And if I could just conclude
with some brief comments. I didn't make many becausge I know
there were many questionsg, but I do want to thank all seven of
you for coming tc Harrisburg to testify. 1 know you came from
far and wide. &And I know there were some guestions as to
whether thisg hearing was necessary. But as a strong proponent
of gaming, I led the charge in the House on the table games. T
gtood on the flcor for many, many, many, many, many hours. And
one of the criticisms that we always hear from the copponents is
that things are done secretively, things are done behind c¢losed
docrs. There's that out there, that element out there, with
regard to gaming. So Chairlady Earll and I decided that it was

important to get the information ocut with regards to your
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organization. We do appreciate all the information.

I think, it's said pretty clearly in my second
letter, my second paragraph to Mr. Zappala, and I'll just, it's
only a sentence or two, "At the outset let me make clear that I
fully support and encourage the Commonwealth's licensed gaming
facilities to organize and gpeak with one voice on various
legislative issues before the General Assembly. Az you are
well aware, all issues surrounding casinos will continue,”
stress this point, "will continue to receive greater scrutiny,
and so the industry must rise to the occasion and meet these
higher standards." And that's all we were trying to do.

Thank you so much for your time, and I wish you a
safe trip home.

MR. SPRAGUE: Thank vou.

{(Whereupon, the proceedings were concluded at 12:25
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I hereby certify that the proceedings and evidence are
contained fully and accurately in the notes taken by me during
the hearing of the within cause, and that this is a true and
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